
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 3
GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

SR 6 A General Manager's Rpt 5
SR 6 A GM Rpt-Fin Mgr Rpt 8
SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt Attach-Cash & Investments 10
SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt-Debt Schedule 11
SR 6 A Fire Chief Report 12
SR 6 A Fire Stats August 2013 14
SR 6 A GM Rpt Facilities and Resources Report 15
SR 6 A GM Rpt Admin Office Rpt August 2013 17
SR 6 A Utilities Manager Report 18
SR 6 A Dist Eng Rpt Addendum to GM Rpt 19
SR 6 A attachment re Statistical analysis of SS levels
by month 21
SR 6 A attachment line plots of SS wells by year
1988_2012 22
SR 6 A attachment line plot San Simeon wells min avg
max 23
SR 6 A attachment re 8_13_2013 SR well levels chart 24
SR 6 A 2013 0801 PRODUCTION 25
SR 6 A attachment well levels summary as of
8_15_2013 26

Consideration to Approve Expenditures for July 2013
SR 7 A Expenditure Report for the Month of July, 2013 27
SR 7 A Expenditure Report Dept. Codes 37

Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular
Meeting, July 25, 2013

SR 7 B 2013 0725 DRAFT MINUTES 38
Consideration to Approve Pacific Western Bank Request for
Intent to Serve Extension for APN 024-191-062

SR 7 C Discussion and Consideration Intent to Serve
Extension Pacific Western Bank 45
SR 7 C Application for Extension and Correspondence
from Pacific Western Bank 47
SR 7 C Attachment of Parcel Map 51
SR 7 C Attachment 2008 Agreement 52

Public Hearing to Adopt Resolution 34-2013 Approving
Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2013/2014

SR 8 A Public Hearing to Approve Approp Limit FFY
2013-2014 61
SR 8 A-Appropriation Limit FFY 2013-2014 63
SR 8 B Reso 34-2014 Adopt FY 2013-2014 Approp
Limit 64

Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Resolution 35-2013
Amending the CCSD Fee Schedule to Provide for Revised Fees
to Connect to the Water and Sewer Systems

1



SR 8 B Approve Reso 35-2013 re water and sewer
capacity fees 65
SR 8 B CCSD Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reso 68
SR 8 B Final Cambria CSD Wtr Swr Capacity Fee
Study 8-8-13 70

Consideration of Adoption of Ordinance 03-2013 Amending the
CCSD Municipal Code to Implement the Interim Issuance of
Intent to Serve Letters and the Revised Water Conservation and
Retrofit Program and Directing the District Clerk to File a Notice
of Exemption and Adoption of Resolution 36-2013 Establishing
Retrofit In-Lieu Fees

SR 9 A 8-22 staff report to adopt ordinance and in-lieu
fee resolution re interim issuance of intent to serve
letters 117
SR 9 A 8-22-13 CCSD Ordinance to amend CCSD
Code to Implement the Interim Issuance of Intent to
Serve Letters w counsel modifications appvd by BOD 120
SR 9 A 8-22-13 -Exhibit A CCSD Code 4 16 Water
Conservations Devices redline 125
SR 9 A 8-22-13  Exhibit B to Chapter 4 20 CCSD Code
w counsel modifications appvd by BOD Exhibit B Ord
03 2013 redline 137
SR 9 A Resolution to establish Points Bank In-lieu fee 151
SR 9 A Ordinance 09 2003 153

2



   

 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING 
Thursday, August 22, 2013– 12:30 PM 

VETERANS MEMORIAL BUILDING, 1000 MAIN ST., CAMBRIA, CA 

 
AGENDA 

This agenda is prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. By listing a topic on 
this agenda, the District’s Board of Directors has expressed its intent to discuss and act on each item. In 
addition to any action identified in the summary description of each item, the action that may be taken by 
the Board of Directors shall include: a referral to staff with specific requests for information; continuance; 
specific direction to staff concerning the policy or mission of the item; discontinuance of consideration; 
authorization to enter into negotiations and execute agreements pertaining to the item; adoption or 
approval; and disapproval. 
 
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the 
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business 
hours. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents shall be made available in alternative formats 
to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any questions regarding the agenda. 
 
1. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Establishment of Quorum 
D. Report from Closed Session 
 

2. SPECIAL REPORTS  
A. SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT REPORT 
B. FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 

(Estimated Time: 5 minutes) 
 

3. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS/PRESENTATIONS 
A. Proclamation Recognizing Cambria Community Emergency Response Team 

(CERT) 
 (Estimated Time: 15 minutes) 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction 
of the Board but not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot 
discuss or act on items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips 
(available at the entry) should be submitted to the District Clerk. 

(Estimated Time: 20 minutes) 
 

5. AGENDA REVIEW: ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND PULLED CONSENT ITEMS 
(Estimated Time: 5 minutes) 

 
6. MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS 

A. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
 

3



CCSD Agenda 
Thursday, August 22, 2013 
Page 2 

B. MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
(Estimated Time: 30 minutes) 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA  

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to 
discuss a consent item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be 
made. Such items are pulled for separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a 
whole is acted upon. 
 
A. Consideration to Approve Expenditures for July 2013 

 
B. Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular Meeting, 

July 25, 2013 
 

C. Consideration to Approve Pacific Western Bank Request for Intent to 
Serve Extension for APN 024-191-062 
 

(Estimated Time: 15 minutes) 
 

8. HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
 

A. Public Hearing to Adopt Resolution 34-2013 Approving Appropriation Limit 
for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 
 

B. Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Resolution 35-2013 Amending the 
CCSD Fee Schedule to Provide for Revised Fees to Connect to the Water 
and Sewer Systems 

(Estimated Time: 30 minutes) 
 
9. REGULAR BUSINESS 

 
A. Consideration of Adoption of Ordinance 03-2013 Amending the CCSD 

Municipal Code to Implement the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve 
Letters and the Revised Water Conservation and Retrofit Program and 
Directing the District Clerk to File a Notice of Exemption and Adoption of 
Resolution 36-2013 Establishing Retrofit In-Lieu Fees 
 

(Estimated Time: 60 minutes) 
 

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or 
request a formal agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal 
action can be taken except to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. 

 
11. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION, 1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201, Cambria 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6  
Agency Designated Representative: Assistant District Counsel 
Title of Position of Unrepresented Employee: General Manager 

4



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6. A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: August 22, 2013   Subject: MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 
Administration 
 
Listed below is my General Manager’s Report for August 22, 2013 in addition to other activities 
that I am working on with the assistance and support of CCSD Ad hoc Committees, Staff, and 
District Counsel.  
 

• CCSD staff has been working on updating the District’s website. Please take a few 
moments to visit the CCSD website at www.cambriacsd.org. Staff will continue to 
update and improve the district website. 

• The Administrative staff continues to work towards transitioning into their new roles, 
assignments and positions. Cortney Upthegrove is doing the job of Administrative 
Technician III/Billing Clerk and Conservation Specialist. Cortney is in the process of 
training another employee within the office for her position as Billing Clerk. The District 
is recruiting for a part time customer service representative. At this point in time 
everything is going well. The Finance Manager is currently overseeing accounts 
receivable, accounts payable, the front counter and customer billing. The Administrative 
Services Officer is overseeing Human Resources, Risk Management and Information 
Technology. 

• The District continues to make progress on records retention and associated data base 
management by the utilization of our Laser Fiche software.  

• I have formulated a Technology Working Group to evaluate and determine how the 
District can become more efficient thru the use of and implementation of technology. 
The working group is comprised of the Finance Manager, Administrative Services 
Officer and the Districts Payroll Clerk. 

• I have formulated a Compliance Audit Working Group to evaluate the Districts current 
permits relating to Water and Wastewater Departments. The Compliance Audit Working 
Group is comprised of the District Engineer, Utilities Manager, District Clerk and both 
Chief Plant Operators from the Water and Wastewater Departments.  

• I have implemented a process that requires all State Reports sent out by the Water and 
Wastewater agencies electronically be mailed also by the Administrative Offices in the 
form of a hard copy with the appropriate cover letter attached. The reports from both 
Departments will be reviewed prior to being sent out for accuracy and a pathway with 
the appropriate electronic folders were developed for future access capability and 
historical retrieval when necessary.  

• I have implemented training between the Finance Manager and District Managers 
relating to the proper coding on budget related items. This training will reduce the 
probability of improper coding and improve overall communication amongst staff while 
focusing on proper financial and budget protocol. 

• Staff working directly with Bartle Wells and Associates has completed the Cambria 
Community Services District Water and Sewer Capacity Fee Study. I am very pleased 
with the results of the report and would like to thank staff and Alex Handler of Bartle 

5

http://www.cambriacsd.org


 
 

 

Wells and Associates for all their hard work over the last year. Several 
recommendations within the report warrant additional conversation with the Board and 
ultimately staff would seek some direction regarding future policy related matters that 
could directly impact the community from a monetary standpoint... The report also noted 
that it did not include a component for the Buildout Recovery Program. Prior to this 
Board Meeting I reached out via telephone to community members who served on the 
Build out Reduction Program Committee to explain the methodology that was used 
within the document. Although the Build out Reduction Committee completed their work 
prior to my arrival I think it is important to acknowledge and thank them for the 
tremendous amount of work they did. I would like to thank the CCSD Board of Directors 
for their patience and allowing staff and Bartle Wells two additional months to complete 
the report.  

• Staff continues to work with RBF Engineering on the preliminary design work for the 
Stuart Street Tank and Rodeo Grounds Pump Station. Staff has received, reviewed and 
commented on the Cambria Community Services District Rodeo Grounds Pump Station 
and Stuart Street Tank Predesign Report Addendum 2 from RBF Engineering dated 
May of 2013.  

• Pro Pipe has completed their 20% cleaning and videotaping of the Districts Collection 
System. Approximately 25-30 manholes were located, specifically along the creeks, 
Strawberry Canyon and Fern Canyon. I would like to thank Greenspace for working 
collaboratively with the CCSD regarding the hand clearing on both canyons and 
reestablishing the District’s easements. Many of the manholes that were discovered 
were more than likely buried for upwards of thirty years. While the process was taking 
place the CCSD received a great deal of positive feedback from the work that we are 
doing relating to CCTV cleaning. There are a few areas that will need immediate 
attention and repair and staff is working with local jurisdictions and contractors to make 
sure the work is completed in a timely manner. 

• I wanted to take a few moments to clarify the combining of the Water and Wastewater 
Departments. I believe I could have selected a better choice of words when letting the 
Board and the public know about changes regarding Departments within the District. I 
should have used the words cohabitate or co-locate instead of combining. I also want to 
touch briefly on concerns from two Cambrians regarding usage of Water and 
Wastewater staff in areas that they may not be properly licensed in. Licensed Water 
Operators are not performing duties requiring a State Wastewater Treatment License. 
Wastewater Operators are not performing duties requiring a State Water License. Both 
Departments are working as a team in matters such as traffic control, emergency 
response, water main breaks and assisting with maintenance related items. The goal of 
the District should be to have all of our operators dual certified. I would encourage the 
Board and all Cambrians to visit and tour the Utilities Operations Center located at the 
Wastewater Treatment Facility. Tours can be arranged by contacting Mike Finnigan 
Utilities Manger at 927-6221 or by email at mfinnigan@cambriaccsd.org. 

• I would encourage the Board and all Cambrians to visit the newly renovated CCSD 
Facilities and Resources Department located at the old Water Yard on the East Ranch. 
The District now has a state of the art facility that can be utilized to better maintain the 
Fiscalini Ranch in addition to providing improved maintenance of the Districts assets. 
Tours can be arranged by contacting Carlos Mendoza Facilities and Resources 
Manager at 927-6220 or by email at cmendoza@cambriaccsd.org. 
 
 
 

6

mailto:mfinnigan@cambriaccsd.org
mailto:cmendoza@cambriaccsd.org


 
 

 

I attended the following meetings and or community events on behalf of the CCSD since 
CCSD’s last Board of Directors’ Meeting on July 25, 2013. 
 

 
• I met with the Water Alternatives Ad-Hoc Committee 
• I attended the Parks, Recreation and Open Space Commissioners Meeting.  
• I served on the interviewing panel for General Manager for the Oceano 

Community Services District.  
• I attended the Camp Ocean Pines Board of Directors Meeting. 
• I attended the monthly Chamber of Commerce Chamber Mixer. 

7



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING-AUGUST 22, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
AUDIT-The CCSD’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 have been 
posted to the CCSD’s website.  
 
BUDGET-The Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Operating Budget has been posted to the CCSD website.  The 
Third Quarter Revenue and Expenditure report for the nine months ended March 31, 2013 has been 
posted to the CCSD website.  The Fourth Quarter Revenue and Expenditure report for the twelve 
months ended June 30, 2013 is expected to be presented in the September, 2013 meeting.  Because this 
is the final report for the fiscal year, additional time to prepare the report is necessary to allow time to 
receive all documents associated with the CCSD’s Revenue and Expenditures for the fiscal year.  Some 
of these documents are not received until August, if not later.  The Compensation Report for calendar 
year 2012 has also been posted to the CCSD website. 
 
EXPENDITURES-There were no disbursements in excess of $100,000 during July, 2013. 
 
RESERVES-LAIF BALANCE-The balance in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) as of  
July 31, 2013 was $4,493,738.  The attached Schedule of Cash and Investments Balance indicates how 
the Cash and Investments balance compares to the prior month’s balance as well as for the same month 
in each of the prior 4 years.  Too much emphasis should not be placed on one month’s activity; rather 
the information should be looked at on a trend basis.   
   
The LAIF Balance is made up as follows (restrictions, if applicable, are noted): 
 
   FUND       AMOUNT 
  General      $ 3,476,244 
  General (Proposition 1A)    $    159,286 
  Water (Conservation Dept.-Lot Merger Program) $      16,086 
  Water (Operations)     $    335,844 
  Water (Capital)     $      54,056 
  Wastewater (Capital)     $    221,060    
  Wastewater (Operations)               $    231,162 
 
With the exception of the restricted funds to offset a potential future Proposition 1A take-away, final 
reserve amounts are determined after all other fiscal year activity is recorded, reconciled and audited, 
although the balances are monitored during the fiscal year to ensure that funds set-aside for specific 
programs, such as the Lot Merger Program, are not overspent. The above amounts have been updated 
based on the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 with the exception of the Resource 
Conservation Department’s balance (for the Lot Merger Program), which has been updated as of June 
30, 2013.  The amounts have also been updated for the interest revenue received through July 31, 2013. 
 
 
 
 

8



 
 
 
 
INTERNAL LOANS-As of July 31, 2013, the CCSD Board of Directors approved several internal 
loans to be made out of the General Fund to the Water and Wastewater Funds. To date, all of the costs 
that were to be paid from the loan proceeds were actually able to be fully paid for out of the Water or 
Wastewater Funds respectively with the exception of the $166,000 loan for ACE match requirements. 
As such, this is the only loan currently outstanding and no additional loans are expected to be required 
for activity through July 31, 2013.  
 

                                   AMOUNT   
                      LOAN                    OF LOAN    
BORROWING           AMOUNT                 COSTS       OUTSTANDING      PURPOSE 
       FUND         AUTHORIZED           TO DATE_         TO DATE_     OF LOAN       
 

       Water    $ 166,000            $ 166,000      $ 157,726             ACE Matching 
  
   
 
EXTERNAL LOANS-As of July 31, 2013 the CCSD external debt is as shown per the attachment, 
including interest rates and prepayment penalty provisions.  

9



10



11



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING AUGUST 22, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
 

Response information is attached and represents activities for the month of July 2013. Progress 
updates and highlights regarding the different programs and services our Department provides 
are identified below: 
 
Prevention and Education (July 2013) 

• 02 residential new and remodel fire plan reviews were completed. 
• 06 residential and commercial technical fire inspections were conducted.  
• 00 hydrant system flow test. 
• 08 engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted. 
• 03 public education event 
• 03 residential smoke detectors were installed and or the batteries changed. 

 
Meetings and Affiliations (July 2013) 

• SLO County Chiefs Assn Meeting  July 10  0900-1300, Pismo Beach 
• Rodeo Grounds Pump Station Mtg  July 16  1100-1200, Cambria 
• Cambria Forest Committee   July 17  1800-2030, Cambria 
• EMS Ad Hoc Committee   July 17  1000-1200, Cambria 
• Insurance Services Org. (ISO)  July 25  0830-1230, Cambria 

 
Operations 
 
Please join us in welcoming the Cambria Fire Department’s newest class of Reserve 
Firefighters.  The new staff will join the department to maintain the current level of 15 
reserve personnel and will provide adequate expertise for paramedic and firefighting 
services.  The new personnel are: Firefighter/Paramedics Brandon Bennewate, David 
Gacad, James Weinstein and Firefighters Andrew Gaultney, James Green, Harrison 
Keller and Jeremy Mace.  The new reserves will begin filling shift assignments in 
September.  These Firefighters will provide adequate personnel (15) to maintain current 
staffing levels and do not represent an increase in crew sizes. 
 
Cambria Firefighters with the assistance of a construction contractor from the San Luis 
Obispo County Alternative Work Program (AWP) will soon begin the construction of a 
new fence around CCSD property at the rear of the fire station at 2850 Burton Drive.  
The project will provide a well needed replacement for the old fence currently at the site 
and will enable the department to access a large piece of CCSD owned property that is 
currently unusable.  Other projects to maintain the facility have been identified and 
accomplished recently such as green LED exterior lighting, replacement carpeting and 
parking lot resurfacing.  Future projects include replacement of water fixtures with low 
flow water saving appliances and painting of the out bay apparatus garage area.                                                                                                                             
 
 
 
Prevention 
 
The Cambria Fire Department continues to be evaluated by the Insurance Services 
Organization (ISO).  Still pending is a thorough review and analysis of the current water 
supply and fire flow.  When complete the review will evaluate the current service levels 
and capabilities of our fire and emergency services within the community. The 
evaluation will result in a rating of the overall fire department capability. The rating is 

12



 2

given numerically on a scale of 1 to 10 with 1 being the highest level of service. The 
rating will determine insurance rates for commercial and residential property within the 
community. The Cambria Fire Department is currently rated as a level 5/9 fire service 
from the last evaluation given in the late 90’s.  It is felt that the many improvements in 
water storage capacity, hydrant placement and water line upgrades in combination with 
improvements in fire department equipment, training and operations will bring 
corresponding improvements in the Department’s ISO rating. 
 

13



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories 13-Jan 13-Feb 13-Mar 13-Apr 13-May 13-Jun 13-Jul 13-Aug 13-Sep 13-Oct 13-Nov Dec-13  Totals

Fire 0 1 0 0 0 4 1 6

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical* 30 41 33 33 30 46 34 247

Vehicle TC 0 3 0 1 1 5 2 12

Hazardous Situations 4 1 1 7 4 2 1 20

Public Service Assist 10 9 7 13 15 8 12 74

False Alarms 10 3 7 9 11 8 10 58

Agency Assist 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Mutual Aid 2 0 0 0 1 2 4 9

Auto Aid 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 4

Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Investigations 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2

Monthly Response Totals 58 58 49 63 64 77 64 433

Cumulative Totals 116 165 228 292 369 433 433

14



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – August 22, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT FACILITIES AND RESOURCES 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

o Fiscalini Ranch: 
§ Fire Breaks: 

• Contracts for the last 3 fire breaks on the Ranch were awarded and 
work has been completed: 

§ Many of the trails on the open fields of the Ranch were overgrown, staff 
mowed back the trails. 
 

o CCSD Lots: 
§ Staff has been finishing up weed abatement on district lots. Fallen trees 

and debris from several lots was removed. 
§ Staff continues to assist Waste Water Department in locating manholes on 

District properties. 
 

o Fire Department 
§ Staff assisted the Fire Department in digging holes for the new fence at 

the Fire Station. Holes were dug with a tractor auger. 
 
o Vet’s Hall: 

§ 58 events were held at Veterans Memorial Building since last Board 
Meeting. Among those events were: Pinedorado-Follies rehearsals, 
Friends of the Library Book Sale, Scarecrow Workshops and Crafts Fair. 

§ Staff has been cleaning the grounds of the hall. Trees in the parking lot 
were trimmed back and material was chipped. Trash and debris was 
hauled away. 

 
o Water Yard: 

§ More work is still being done at the now Facilities and Resources Yard: 
• Grounds: 

• Staff continues to remove all trash and debris around the 
building. 

• Staff cut back all encroaching willow trees around the 
perimeter of the yard 

• Interior: 
• Bays: 

o Staff has emptied out all of the bays and the interior 
walls and ceiling have been pressure washed. 

• Exterior Building: 
• Exterior of the building was pressure washed and will be 

painted by the end of the month. 
o Equipment: 

§ New John Deere tractor arrived.  
o Parks: 

§ Dog Park: 
• Staff mowed the perimeter of the park and made repair to the 

parking lot. 

15



§ Skate Park: 
• Staff made some repairs to the parking lot and repaired some 

ventilations screens. 
§ Steelhead Park: 

• Staff mowed the entire park 
o Trails: 

§ Santa Rosa Trail: 
• Staff mowed and trimmed back trail 

§ Windsor-Shamel Park Trail: 
• Trail was mowed and trimmed back 

 
 
Submitted by: 
Carlos Mendoza 
Facilities and Resources Supervisor/ 
Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Manager 
 

 

 

16



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING AUGUST 22, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE REPORT 
 
Human Resources:     
 
We have begun the recruitment process for all three positions, Wastewater Operator II, 
Water Operator T3/D2 and an Administrative Technician I.   
 
Ramon Lopez, Wastewater Operator II recently gave his notice and will be leaving the 
CCSD.  We will miss Ramon and wish him the best in his future endeavors.   
 
This has opened another position within the Wastewater Department.  Our recruitment 
process will include a replacement for this position.   
 
Retrofit Point Bank: 
 
As of 8/1/2013 we have handed out 745 showerheads and 816 aerators. Commercial 
customers have received 204 aerators and 328 showerheads.  Residential customers have 
received 612 aerators, and 417 showerheads.   
 
We have worked on the retrofit upon resale points total and have included it below through 
July 2013.   
 
The retrofit point bank total at this time is 8872.   
 
Rebates:    6454 
Retrofit upon resale:   2418 
Total remaining points:  8872 
 
Conservation:   
 
Conservation meetings continue to be held weekly.   
 
Cortney Upthegrove Murguia and Justin Smith completed the Landscape Auditing class at 
Cal Poly during August 2013. They will begin conducting Landscape Audits within the next 
30 days. Anyone interested in having an audit conducted may contact Cortney Upthegrove 
Murguia at (805) 927-6222 for details on this program.  
 
Public Outreach: 
 
Cortney Upthegrove Murguia and Justin Smith will be attending the Multiple Listing Service 
meeting in Cambria on August 22. Cortney Upthegrove Murguia will be attending the Morro 
Bay meeting on August 23. Additionally, we are in the process of ordering two different 
types of showerheads and an upgraded kitchen sink aerator. We believe that these 
upgraded fixtures may appeal to customers who have not yet participated in our water use 
efficiency plan showerhead and aerator retrofit program.  
 
Cortney Upthegrove Murguia will also be returning to the Farmers Market every other Friday 
starting August 9, 2013.  
 
Submitted by, 
Monique Madrid 
Administrative Services Officer 

17



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING AUGUST 22, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

UTILITIES MANAGER REPORT 
 

Water Department: 
 

 
v Alpha Electric completed installation of new Opto 22 controller at the SR4 Well.  
 
v Working with Water Department staff reviewing treatment operations, daily process 

control strategies, and maintenance programs.  
 
v Miller drilling finished installing new booster pump motor at Stuart Street tank. 
 
v Staff ordered a new 8 inch flow meter for Stuart Street booster pump station 
 
v Staff continues to move forward with distribution system repairs. 
 
v Alpha Electric upgraded the rodeo grounds telemetry communication site. 
 
v Staff contacted Hydro Max USA regarding valve exercising, GPS, & water main  

mapping project. 
 
v Staff is working with Souza construction on Main Street bridge dewatering project 

 
WasteWater Department: 
 

v Replaced Vactor truck outer suction tube. 
 

v Staff is prepairng for the ELAP laboratory annual inspection. 
 
v Dechance Construction has completed emergency repairs on West street sewer line. 
 
v Staff assisted Pro-pipe with cleaning sewer lines located at the Oak Terrace mobile 

home site. 
 
v Staff worked with Bushwacker tree service regarding improving access to Fern 

Canyon, Strawberry Canyon, and East Ranch easement. 
 
v Working with Dechance Construction on replacing equalization tank emergency 

bypass valve. 
 
Administrative: 
 
 

v Attending weekly meetings with both Water and Wastewater supervisors. 
 

v Reviewing and updating water department master sample schedule sampling. 
 
v Continue to working with senior water operator and district engineer reviewing Rodeo 

Grounds and Stuart Street tank booster pump station plans and submittals. 
 
 
Mike Finnigan 
Utilities Manager 

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com18

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – AUGUST 22, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

DISTRICT ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
The following table summarizes activities from July 25, 2013 to August 15, 2013. As mentioned 
in last month’s report, this report also describes well levels.  
 
Item No. Description Activities/Project Status 
1 Capital Improvement Program 

& Connection/impact fee 
update. 

Continued to coordinate with consultant Bartle Wells 
Associates. Today’s hearing item includes the August 8, 
2013 Water and Sewer Capacity Fee study that was 
recently completed by Bartle Wells Associates and 
addresses proposed changes to the fees  

2 Assistance to water & 
wastewater operations. 

A change order was issued to ProPipe to extend their 
current CCTV inspection and cleaning work to include 
select reaches of sewers paralleling seasonal creek areas 
in Strawberry Canyon and behind Orlando Drive. These 
areas were chosen to determine whether they could be 
sources for infiltration and inflow during periods of heavy 
rainfall.   
  
Provided follow up information to the SWRCB in response 
to questions received on 7/23/2013 associated with 2011 
sanitary sewer overflow events. 
 
Currently developing a request for quotation to 
incorporate water and sewer facilities into an updated GIS 
system. 
 
Currently developing a request for proposal for a 
wastewater treatment plant master plan.   

3 Water Conservation program  Attended staff conservation working group meeting on 
8/12/2013, which included proposal development 
discussions with Maddaus Water Management for training 
staff on commercial water use audits. 

4 Sanitary sewer extension to 
well SR-4 treatment facility. 

Met with Coast Unified School District representatives on 
8/9/2013 to review a proposed sanitary sewer extension 
to the Well SR-4 treatment facility, which is located 
behind the high school. 

5 Rodeo Grounds Pump Station 
Replacement and Stuart Street 
Tank 3. 

Currently working on Coastal Development Permit 
applications to the County.  Revised preliminary layout 
drawings were received from RBF on 7/19/2013.   

6 Long-term water supply project Provided review comments to an administrative review 
draft technical memo, which further documented the 
various alternatives described during the 2012 workshops 
and the associated screening process.   
Currently reviewing the need for further hydro-geological 
study and how to fund such additional work to help 
answer detailed technical questions posed by the 
environmental consultant.        (Continued on next page) 

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com19

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


 
 

 

Coordinating with legal counsel on an agreement with the 
Ferguson Group to provide D.C. advocacy services 
associated with WRDA and Federal funding. 
Further details were not available from ACE for this 
month’s staff report. 

7 Development and remodels  Three remodel reviews were completed during this 
period. 

 
 
The attached table and figures show the current Santa Rosa and San Simeon supply well 
levels plotted up to August 15, 2013. As of this date, the San Simeon wells were at 5.74 feet 
above sea level, and the Santa Rosa well SR4 was at 50.77 feet above sea level.  Please also 
note that report has added a statistical monthly comparison for the San Simeon well levels to 
further augment the historical plot that shows levels for each year from 1988 through 2012. 
 
The attached production table shows that from January 2013 through July 2013, 377 acre-feet 
had been produced by the San Simeon well field, and 55 acre-feet had been produced by 
Santa Rosa well SR4. This results in a total production from both sources of 432 acre-feet. The 
January through July 2013 production total is close to what it was during 2007 and 2005 for 
this same time of year.  For discussion purposes, the total annual production was 748.18 acre-
feet for 2007 and 741.24 acre-feet for 2005. In comparison, the most recent 2012 total annual 
production was 724.74 acre feet. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

• Well Levels Summary as of August 15, 2013 
• Plot showing statistical analysis of San Simeon well levels by month 
• Line plots of San Simeon well levels by year, 1988 to August 15, 2013. 
• Line plot of San Simeon well levels for historic minimum, average, and maximum. 
• Line plot of Santa Rosa well levels for 2013, up to August 15, 2013 
• Annual production by source from1988 through July 31, 2013. 

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com20

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

1988 ‐2012 Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Purple (hatched) and Green (solid) bars

25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2013 reads

21



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

15 A
P

R
L

15 M
A

Y

15 JU
N

E

15 JU
LY

15 A
U

G
.

15 S
E

P
T

15 O
C

T.

15 N
O

V
.

15 D
E

C
.

15 JA
N

.

15 FE
B

.

15 M
A

R
.

15
El

ev
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l (

Fe
et

)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - March, 2013

1988  (566 af) 1989  (622 af) 1990  (457 af) 1991  (405 af) 1992  (542 af) 1993  (691 af)
1994  (538 af) 1995  (676 af) 1996  (718 af) 1997  (679 af) 1998  (707 af) 1999  (775 af)
2000  (799 af) 2001  (745 af) 2002 (728 af) 2003 (709 af) 2004 (612 af) 2005 (652 af)
2006 (613 af) 2007 (618 af) 2008 (707.61) 2009 (699.48) 2010 (672.41) 2011 (682.88)
2012 2013

22



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

15 A
pr

15 M
ay

15 June

15 July

15 A
ug

15 S
ept

15 O
ct

15 N
ov

15 D
ec

15 Jan

15 Feb

15 M
ar

15
El

ev
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l (

Fe
et

)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
2013 levels to date and 

1988 to 2012 Min, Max, & Average
2013 Maximum Levels Minimum Levels Average Levels

23



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

55.00

60.00

15
th

A
PR

L

15
th

M
AY 15
th

JU
N

E

15
th

JU
LY

15
th

A
U

G
.

15
th

S
EP

T

15
th

O
C

T.

15
th

N
O

V.

15
th

D
EC

.

15
th

JA
N

.

15
th

FE
B.

15
th

M
AR

.

15
th

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 A

B
O

VE
 S

EA
 L

EV
EL

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELL LEVELS
March 15th, 2013- Current

23R(HS well) SR4
SR3 SR1

24



2013
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
        WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

ACRE-FEET
1000.0

YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG. SEPT. OCT. NOV. DEC. TOTAL YEAR

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60
1988 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90 1988

TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40
1989 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60 1989

TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14
1990 S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66 1990

TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90
1991 S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80 1991

TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30
1992 S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.40 1992

TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50
1993 S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 1993

TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00
1994 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10 1994

TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94
1995 S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90 1995

TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99
1996 S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26 1996

TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51
1997 S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29 1997

TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.66 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31
1998 S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16 1998

TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05
1999 S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53 1999

TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82
2000 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2000

TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25
2001 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68 2001

TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77
2002 S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71 2002

TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83
2003 S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05 2003

TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52
2004 S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11 2004

TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26
2005 S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98 2005

TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96
2006 S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14 2006

TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61
2007 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57 2007

TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.18

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69
2008 S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92 2008

TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94
2009 S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54 2009

TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90
2010 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51 2010

TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16
2011 S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72 2011

TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73
2012 S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01 2012

TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S 51.09 47.40 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 378.48
2013 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 55.23 2013

TOTAL 51.09 47.40 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 433.72

-2.57 -1.48 2.12 8.36 6.95 5.91 2.82DIFFERENCE

25



8/15/13 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 8/15/13

Reference
Distance Point Depth of
Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea
Code Water Level Level Level            Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 33.80 83.42 49.62
SR4 31.23 82.00 50.77
SR3 20.58 54.30 33.72 Shut down*

SR1 19.90 46.40 26.50 Shut down*

RP#1 21.41 46.25 24.84
RP#2 33.11 Not Read
21R3 12.88 Not Read
WBE 13.92 16.87 2.95
WBW 17.02 Not Read

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 30.11 FEET
      CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = 50.77 FEET

          *  Wells SR-1 and SR-3 are out of service.  Well SR-4 serves as CCSD's Santa Rosa production wel

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 8.10 11.81 3.71
9M1 65.63 Not Read
9P2 14.88 19.11 4.23
9P7 19.59 Not Read
9L1 21.87 27.33 5.46
SS4 20.70 25.92 5.22 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = + 0.99
9K2 25.10 30.23 5.13
SS3 28.39 33.25 4.86
SS2 28.13 34.01 5.88
SS1 27.60 34.07 6.47
11B1 105.43 Not Read
11C1 30.20 98.20 68.00

PFNW 93.22 Not Read
10A1 78.18 Not Read
10G2 62.95 Not Read
10G1 59.55 Not Read
10F2 66.92 Not Read
10M2 55.21 Not Read
9J3 43.45 Not Read

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1, SS2,  & SS3  = 5.74 FEET

8/15/13
                                         Report format revised 7/23/2013

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 

 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
P.O. Box 65 • Cambria, CA  93428  • Telephone:  (805) 927-6223 • Fax: (805) 927-5584 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADDENDA TO MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT CODES 
      FD  Fire Department  
 F&R  Facilities and Resources   
 ADM  Administration  
 RC  Resource Conservation  
 WD  Water Department  
 WW  Wastewater Department  
 PR  Parks & Recreation  

 

37



  CONSENT ITEM 7 B 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2013, 12:30 PM 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION OR ACTION 
1A. CALL TO ORDER Vice President Bahringer called the regular 

meeting to order at 12:35 PM.  
1B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Vice President Bahringer led the pledge of 

allegiance and established quorum with President 
Thompson having an excused absence. 

1C. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM President Thompson  Absent 
Vice President Bahringer Present 
Director Clift   Present 
Director Rice   Present 
Director Robinette  Present 
Staff Present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, 
Assistant District Counsel David Hirsch, District 
Engineer Bob Gresens and District Clerk Kathy 
Choate. 
 

1D. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION  Counsel reported the items from last meeting 
were continued to this meeting, so no closed 
session to report. 

2. SPECIAL REPORTS  
A. Sheriff’s Department Report No report  
B. Fire Department Report Chief Miller highlighted Fire Department report 

and reported on two fire events this month. Board 
discussion followed. 

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS Vice President Bahringer presented proclamations 
to Mike Griffin, President, Rotary Club of Cambria 
and Linda Finley, President, Rotary Club of Cambria 
Sunrise Centennial for the sidewalk and 
landscaping improvements at Veterans Memorial 
Building.  

4. PUBLIC COMMENT Catherine Hyde, Cambria. Will speak during 8B. 
Tina Dickason, Cambria. Today’s Cambrian 
misrepresented her regarding Prop 218. She is 
circulating a petition among Cambrians to declare 
objection to issue intent to serve letters. 

5. AGENDA REVIEW Stands as published. 
6. MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS  

A. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

General Manager Gruber presented the manager’s 
report. Board discussion followed. 
District Engineer Gresens provided Engineer’s 
report and provided a well level presentation. 
Board discussion followed. 
 

38



CCSD Minutes 
Page 2 
July 25, 2013 

Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Commented on 
July 12 email regarding Consumer Confidence 
report, SRWQB and regional agencies, DMM, how 
many manholes are near the creek, staff water 
certifications, and connection fee study. 
Catherine Hyde, Cambria. Commented on two 
breaks on Brighton Lane and is interested in how 
much water was lost during this water break and 
procedure to notify effected residents. Will there 
be more breaks of this size?  
Tina Dickason, Cambria. Commented on Windsor 
and Hwy 1 man hole cleaning. Is Water and 
Wastewater Utilities staff to be dual certified? 

B. MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS Director Rice reported on NCAC meeting. 
She commented on a meeting she attended with 
San Simeon riparian landowners who have been 
meeting regarding conservation and efficient use 
of water serving their properties and Fish and 
Wildlife Permit fee required to move fish.  
 
Director Clift reported on Ad Hoc Shared Services 
meeting and issue surrounding healthcare district 
employees performing in Fire Department roles; 
may require legislative measures to get through 
the legal requirements and will take some time. 
Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Is there a report 
from Ad Hoc Conservation Committee? 

7. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approve expenditures for month of June 

2013 
B. Approve Minutes of Board of Directors 

regular meeting June 27, 2013 and Special 
Meeting, June 21, 2013 

C. Approve the agreement for use of Fuel 
and Fuel Tanks by and between the 
Cambria Community Services District and 
Cambria Community Healthcare District 

D. Approve scheduling public hearing to 
consider approval of the Appropriation 
Limit for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 

E. Approve Water Department repairs 
relating to additional automation for the 
SR4 well 

F. Adopt Resolution 33-2013 approving a 
one-year contract extension with Crosby 
Company, CPA for the Professional 

Director Clift moved to approve the consent 
agenda. Director Rice seconded. Motion carried. 
Ayes – 4, No – 0, Absent – 1 (Thompson) 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
 

39



CCSD Minutes 
Page 3 
July 25, 2013 

Financial Auditing Services 
 

8. HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
A. Public Hearing to adopt Resolution 30-

2013 ordering abatement of public 
nuisance for Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction 
Program 

Vice President Bahringer introduced the item and 
opened the public hearing. General Manager 
Gruber presented the staff report.  
Public Comment: None 
Vice President Bahringer closed the public hearing. 
 
Director Robinette moved to adopt Resolution 
30-2013 ordering abatement of public nuisance 
for Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program. Director 
Clift seconded. Roll Call Vote: Ayes – 3, No – 1 
(Rice), Absent – 1 (Thompson) 
 

B. Public Hearing to consider introduction of 
Ordinance 03-2013 and adoption of 
Resolution 19-2013 amending the CCSD 
Municipal Code and approving 
Administrative Procedures and related 
actions to implement the Interim Issuance 
of Intent to Serve Letters and the revised 
Water Conservation and Retrofit Program 

Vice President Bahringer opened the public 
hearing and submitted Cynthia Hawley written 
comment for the record. General Manager Gruber 
introduced the staff report. Assistant District 
Counsel presented the staff report.  
 
Public Comment: 
Cynthia Hawley, written comment for the record. 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Commented on 
page 85 Section 3; who will draft admin policy and 
when will it be brought to the Board? Page 104 are 
administrative policy and procedures the same 
thing or two different things? What are verifiable 
reductions? Are the connection fees in August 
exclusively devoted to Buildout Reduction Program 
or not? Are in-lieu fees going to be spent on 
anything other than Conservation Program?  
Susan Shaler, Cambria. Owner of second home in 
Cambria; concerned with current water users 
access to water. Water efficiency fixtures should 
be graphed and verified. Predicted water usage is 
increasing, conservation measures, and no new 
water permits. Do not rush to issue new ITS 
letters. 
Dennis Frahmann, 5 year home owner, Cambria. 
Believes water is key to future of this town. 
Conservation Plan is well thought out and creates 
water saving for future water users. What is best 
for town as a whole? Encouraged board to 
continue to move forward and supports the 
proposed activities. 
Jean Matulis, 12 year resident, Cambria. 
Commented on amending muni code at this point 
relies heavily on Conservation Plan. Currently, 

40



CCSD Minutes 
Page 4 
July 25, 2013 

Cambrians are trying to conserve for survival, not 
to build more houses to consume more water. Are 
showerheads being utilized that are being issued? 
Tina Dickason, Cambria. No reduction in water use 
despite efficiency plan put in place. Nothing in 
water bill regarding conservation measures. Have 
not supplied an alternate supply of water. 
Commented on rancher letters to editor July 23. 
Opposes intent to serve letters. Conservation is 
not verified. 
Karen Dean, Cambria. Part time home owner since 
1994, will be full time within a couple of months. 
How do you know how many properties left to 
retrofit? Have part time users been considered in 
the long term? If a board member has a wait list 
position, is it a conflict to vote on this issue? 
Mary Webb, Vice President, Greenspace Cambria 
Land Trust. Spoke in opposition. Still in Water 
Code 350. RWQCB 1624 for Santa Rosa Creek 
required groundwater basin management plan. No 
monitoring plan in Cambria Pines Lodge expansion. 
Build out reduction program unfunded. 
Conservation program no validated for water 
savings. Request no change to GMO.  
Jeff Hellman, Cambria. Spoke in opposition to 
issuing intent to serve letters.  
 
Full Board discussion followed. 
Public Comment: 
Tina Dickason – Commented on Growth 
Management Ordinance, moratorium, water 
conservation, and website information. Opposes 
issuance of intent to serve letters. 
Karen Dean, Cambria. What is connection fee used 
for? If we do nothing to conserve, why can’t we 
save that water for catastrophic event? Asked if 
counsel would comment on whether it is a conflict 
for a board member to hold a wait list position and 
vote on issuing intent to serve letters. 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Page 125, do 
not have to prove using green; what constitutes 
excessive water use? Page 121, as a community 
member, the procedures to her are vague. 
Jean Matulis, Cambria. Commented on assumption 
when property passes on. Where she lives are 
three second homes and owners do plan to live 
there. Does not support building more houses with 
more usage. 

41



CCSD Minutes 
Page 5 
July 25, 2013 

Nancy Anderson, Cambria. Has not seen the 
Conservation Plan. Does it include more than 
retrofit? What are the regulations in terms of 
watering yard and plants? 
Mary Webb, VP, Greenspace. Have you met with 
Coastal Commission? Riparian users feel 
blindsided. Urged CCSD meet with agencies that 
will be considering approval. 
Susan Shaler, San Diego. Is there a moratorium? 
CCSD website references it. Counsel opinion in 
2011 confirmed it. Disagrees conservation is new 
water. Conservation has an end game. Paramount 
responsibility to protect existing water users. Per 
capita use, total water use has increased and wells 
are dropping. 
Jeff Hellman, Cambria. Cambria economy is good. 
Global warming is real and is causing droughts. 
Cambria will have higher percentage of residents 
over time. Use Conservation to develop a buffer of 
water, not use more. 
 
Director Robinette read the written response she 
received from the Fair Political Practice 
Commission with regard to her holding a wait list 
position and there being no conflict of interest. 
“The financial effect on Ms. Robinette’s properties 
is indistinguishable from the effect on the public 
generally.” 
 
Mary Webb, Cambria. Commented on wait list and 
she is not intimating to anyone Director Robinette 
is doing something wrong.  
 
Director Bahringer closed the public hearing. 
 
Director Rice moved to adopt Resolution 19-2013 
and waive further reading, read by title only and 
introduce ordinance 03-2013 with counsel 
reading into the record modifications to second 
sentence in Section III 5, on page 5 of the 
Administrative Policy to read “The General 
Manager will calculate and apply retrofits 
actually completed by the applicant to future 
retrofit requirements for the same parcel. In the 
event retrofit in-lieu fees were paid instead of 
performing retrofits, such fees shall be refunded 
to the applicant and related retrofit points shall 
be returned to the Points Bank.” The last two 

42



CCSD Minutes 
Page 6 
July 25, 2013 

sentences of Section 4.20.030(a)(5) should be 
deleted and replaced with the following: “Any 
retrofit in-lieu fees paid by the applicant shall be 
refunded and related retrofit points shall be 
returned to the points bank.” District Counsel 
read title of ordinance for the record, “Ordinance 
03-2013 amending Chapters 4.16, 4.20 and 8.04 
of the CCSD Municipal Code Relating to Water 
Conservation Devices, the Water Conservation 
and Retrofit Program, and Water and Sewer 
Allocation in Order to Amend the Water 
Conservation and Retrofit Program and 
Implement the Water Use Efficiency Plan and the 
Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters. 
Director Clift seconded. Roll call vote. Ayes – 
Directors Rice, Clift, Robinette, and Acting 
President Bahringer. No – 0, Absent – 1 
(Thompson). Motion carried. 
 

9. REGULAR BUSINESS  
A. Discussion and consideration to appoint 

2013/2014 Ad Hoc Committee to provide 
input for IAFF Negotiations and Dental 
Plan for all CCSD employee groups 

Vice President Bahringer introduced the item. 
General Manager Gruber presented the staff 
report.  
Director Rice moved to appoint Director 
Thompson and Director Clift for an Ad Hoc IAFF 
Negotiation and Dental Plan for all CCSD 
employee groups Committee. Director Robinette 
seconded. Motion carried. 
Ayes – 4, No – 0, Absent – 1 (Thompson) 
Public Comment: None 

B. Discussion and consideration for an 
extension of an intent to serve letter for 
Cambria Shores Inn, Kim Eady, applicant, 
APN 022.381.002 

Vice President Bahringer introduced the item. 
General Manager Gruber presented the report. 
Board discussion followed.  
Public Comment: 
Kim Eady, Cambria Shores Inn. Bought property in 
1999 and is working to finish his project the best 
he can to meet imposed conditions. Has made 
significant progress between 2006 – 2010 
investing $3 million. His current permit with 
County is good for three years. Board questions 
followed.  
Director Clift moved to approve a 24-month 
extension of a 6 commercial EDU Intent to Serve 
Letter for Kim Eady’s Cambria Shores Inn, APN 
022.381.002. Rice seconded. 
Ayes -4, No – 0, Absent – 1 (Thompson). 
 
 

43



CCSD Minutes 
Page 7 
July 25, 2013 

C. Adopt Ordinance 04-2013 adding Chapter 
1.06 to provide informal bidding 
procedures under the Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act (Section 
22000 et seq. of the California Public 
Contract Code) 

President Bahringer introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber turned the item to District 
Counsel for presentation. District Counsel read 
into record title of Ordinance 04-2013, an 
Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District Adding Chapter 1.06 
to Provide Informal Bidding Procedures under the 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act 
(Section 22000 et seq. of the California Public 
Contract Code). 
 
Director Rice moved to adopt Ordinance 04-2013 
by title only and waive further reading. Director 
Robinette second. Motion carried. 
Ayes – 4, No – 0, Absent – 1 (Thompson) 
 

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
 

Board discussion regarding Standing Finance 
Committee and consider later in the year around 
October. 

11. ADJOURN 
 

Vice President Bahringer adjourned the meeting 
to closed session at 4:30 PM.  

 

44



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.C. 
 
FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
  Cortney Upthegrove, Administrative Tech III 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  August 22, 2013   Subject: Consider Extension of Intent  
        to Serve Letter for Pacific Western Bank,  
        Applicant, APNs 024.191.062 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve a 36-month extension of a 16 EDU Multi-Family 
Residential Intent to Serve Letter for Pacific Western Bank APNs 024.191.062 with the conditions that 
there be significant progress or completion of the project prior to November 25, 2016 in order to be 
eligible for an additional extension, and that the project shall be subject to meeting all of the current 
plumbing standards per CCSD Code Section 4.16.160(A).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Time extensions for Intent to Serve Letters are subject to paying fees in accordance 
with the CCSD’s Fee Schedule and are required to pay a $400 deposit to cover the actual cost.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Pursuant to CCSD Code Section 8.04.080(E)(3), the extension of an Intent to Serve letter for more than 
three (3) EDU’s is to be approved by the Board of Directors. Multi-Family Residential project extensions 
are valid for up to a 36-month period. That Section also provides that “…The board of directors shall 
have full discretion to approve or disapprove the request for extension on all other projects and, if 
granted, shall be subject to any conditions, which the board may impose.” 
 
CCSD Code Section 8.04.080(E)(3) also requires that applications for an extension of a Multi-Family 
Residential intent to serve letter have an application accepted by the County for processing of a minor 
use permit or development plan, if applicable, and an active application for a building permit. In addition 
any extension of an Intent to Serve letter shall be subject to payment of fees in accordance with the 
CCSD Fee Schedule, which requires a $400.00 deposit.   
 
 
This Intent letter was originally issued in 1997. The CCSD Board of Directors has approved eight prior 
extensions from 1999 until present. The most recent extension was issued in 2008 via special 
agreement and allowed for a five year extension period. As set forth in the attached letter from the 
Applicant, they are requesting a hardship waiver of the requirements in Section 8.04.080(E)(3), based 
upon the history of the property, and other factors relating to the real estate market and their efforts to 
sell the property for development. Section 8.04.080(E)(4) permits the Board to grant such hardship 
waivers “...upon a showing by the applicant that the time extension is necessary and the failure to 
comply with the requirements of subsection 8.04.080 E(3) is the result of circumstances outside of its 
control, including but not limited to financial hardship, foreclosure of the property and acquisition by a 
lender, or any similar facts and circumstances.”  The applicant has also submitted additional documents 
in support of their request relating to their efforts to develop the property. Those documents total 
approximately 335 pages and have been provided to the Board under separate cover. A copy of the 
additional documents is also available for public review in the District Clerk’s Office. 
 
Based upon the circumstances set forth in the Applicant’s letter, Staff is recommending that the Board 
of Directors grant a 36-month extension, and impose conditions that there be significant progress or 
completion of the project prior to November 25, 2016 in order to be eligible for an additional extension 
and that the project shall be subject to meeting all of the current plumbing standards per CCSD Code 
Section 4.16.160(A). Failure to meet these conditions could result in revocation of the Intent to Serve 

45



 
 

 

letter and return of the 16 EDUs to the Multi-Family Residential Wait List pursuant to CCSD Code 
Section 8.04.080(E)(1) and (F). 
 
If approved, this extension of the Intent to Serve letter would be valid through November 25, 2016.  
 
Attachments:  Parcel Map  
  Application for Extension 
  Correspondence from Pacific Western Bank 
   Copy of previous agreement dated 2008 
   
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___RICE___ROBINETTE 

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.A. 
 
FROM: Alleyne LaBossiere, Finance Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: August 22, 2013  Subject: Conduct Public Hearing to Consider  
        Approving the Appropriation Limit for  
        Fiscal Year 2013/2014 and Adopt    
        Resolution 34-2013 Establishing the    
        Appropriation Limit for the CCSD 
 
Recommendation: 

1. Conduct public hearing to approve the appropriation limit for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 
 
2. Adopt Resolution 34-2013 establishing the CCSD appropriation limit for Fiscal Year 

2013/2014, and direct staff to submit the resolution to the SLO County Auditor-
Controller. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no fiscal impact if the CCSD is below the calculated limit, which is the situation; 
however, the annual appropriation limit calculation is still required and if the CCSD were over 
the limit, it would result in a reduction in General Fund Revenue or an increase in General 
Fund expenditures. 
 
Discussion: 
 
This is an annual item required by California state law, which limits the amount of property tax 
revenue that may be spent by local governments, including special districts, on activities other 
than education. 
 
In November 1979 California voters passed Proposition 4, which added Article XIIIB to the 
California constitution, and places an upper limit each year on the amount of money that can 
be spent on general operations from state tax revenues. The limit is based on 1978/1979 base 
year and adjusts each year based on population growth and inflation. 
 
In 1990 California voters approved Proposition 111, which modified Article XIIIB and provided 
new adjustment formulas making the Appropriation Limit more responsive to local growth 
issues, as well as requiring an annual review of limit calculations. 
 
Government code Section 7910 provides that each year the governing body of each local 
jurisdiction is to, by resolution, establish its appropriation limit and make other necessary 
determinations for the following fiscal year pursuant to Article XIIIB. The Board is being asked 
to hold a public hearing to consider the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Appropriation Limit. 
 
 

61



 2

The Appropriation Limit is submitted to the audit firm and becomes part of the annual audit 
review, and is also submitted to the State Controller’s Office.  
 
Resolution 34-2013 establishes the FY 2013/2014 Appropriation Limit and Budgeted 
Appropriation Subject to Limit. Revenue subject to the limit is property tax revenue. The 
CCSD’s Appropriation Limit for FY 2013/2014 is $2,468,723, and when compared to the 
budgeted appropriation of $1,853,517, the CCSD falls under the limit by $615,206.  The 
financial analysis is attached for reference. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 34-2013 
  FY 2013/2014 Appropriation Limit and Budgeted Appropriation Subject to Limit 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ ROBINETTE ___RICE ____ 
 

62



63



 
RESOLUTION 34-2013 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 APPROVING THE PROPOSITON 4 APPROPRIATION LIMIT 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 

 
 WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Finance staff notified the 
CCSD of the change in the California per capita personal income and population 
changes in the unincorporated portions of San Luis Obispo County in 2013, which are 
used to calculate the appropriations limit adjustment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the calculation factor to adjust the appropriation limit in Fiscal Year 
2013/2014 is 1.0555, which is applied to the prior year appropriation limit of $2,338,891 
to yield an appropriation limit of $2,468,723 for Fiscal Year 2013/2014; and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to California Constitution Article XIIIB, Section 1, 
Government Code Section 7900, and pursuant to the subsequent guidelines set forth by 
Proposition 111, the CCSD appropriation limit must be adjusted for changes for Fiscal 
Year ending June 30, 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CCSD plans to appropriate approximately $1,853,517 in direct 
property tax revenue proceeds during Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors for the 
Cambria Community Services District approves the Appropriation Limit for the CCSD for 
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2014, in the amount of $2,468,723.  This limit is greater 
than the expected total tax proceeds appropriation of $1,853,517 budgeted in the 
current fiscal year. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of August 2013. 
 
Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 
 
 
              
       Michael Thompson, President, 
       Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Kathy A. Choate     Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk      District Counsel 

64



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO. 8.B 
 
FROM: Robert Gresens, District Engineer 
  David Hirsch, Assistant District Legal Counsel 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: August 22, 2013          Subject: Public Hearing to Consider  
         Adoption of Resolution 35-2013  
         Amending the CCSD Fee  
         Schedule to Provide for Revised  
         Fees to Connect to the Water  
         and Sewer Systems 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

1) Receive presentation. 
2) Hold hearing to receive public comments. 
3) Subject to Board deliberations, accept the attached Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study 

by Bartle Wells Associates dated August 8, 2013. 
4) Approve Resolution 35-2013 adopting a water capacity fee of $12,688 per equivalent 

dwelling unit (EDU); and, a sewer capacity fee of $7,161 per EDU for properties located 
within the boundaries of Assessment District 2; or, $9,330 per EDU for properties 
located outside of Assessment District 2; and, providing that applicants shall be 
responsible for paying all costs of making physical connection to the CCSD’s water 
and/or sewer system, and shall reimburse the CCSD any actual costs incurred by the 
District.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The cost of the capacity fee study prepared by Bartle Wells Associates was $24,750, with 60% 
of this cost being applied to water and 40% being applied to sewer.   
 
The Bartle Wells report found the District’s current capacity fees do not fully recover costs for 
water and sewer infrastructure that benefit new development.  Based on their analysis, the 
existing water capacity fee of $3,255 per EDU should be increased to $12,688 per EDU.  
Similarly, the existing sewer capacity fee of $2,170 per EDU should be increased to $7,161 per 
EDU for properties located within the Assessment District 2 boundary; or, $9,330 per EDU for 
properties located outside of Assessment District 2. Applicants will also be responsible for 
paying all costs of making the physical connection to the CCSD’s water and/or sewer system, 
and reimbursing the CCSD for any actual costs incurred by the District. This will have a 
positive impact on the District finances from any new development requiring the payment of 
capacity fees.  

 
BACKGROUND 
  
On August 27, 2012, the District authorized Bartle Wells Associates to complete a study 
updating the capacity fees charged to new development for water and sewer.    Although there 
may have been a few subsequent annual adjustments to these fees, staff research found the 

65



  

most detailed Board discussion and action on these fees last occurred during 1986.   The key 
objectives of the recently completed Bartle Wells study included: 
 

• Recovering the full costs of water and sewer system infrastructure and assets that 
benefit new development. 

• Equitably recovering such costs from new development based on the capacity needs of 
each new development. 

• Developing fees that are consistent with industry-wide practices and methodologies. 
• Being in compliance with government code.   

 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information on recommended capacity 
fees for water and sewer, and to support an adjustment to the these fees by the adoption of 
the attached Resolution 35-2013. It should be noted that the current fees to connect to the 
CCSD water and sewer systems have previously been referred to as “connection fees” and for 
consistency, based upon the Bartle Wells study, we are recommending that we refer to such 
fees as “capacity fees.”    
 
The fee analysis used an “average cost approach,” which determines the proportionate share 
of costs for both existing and future facilities that benefit future development.  
 
The methodology supporting this analysis first determined the value of existing water and 
sewer facilities and assets for fee recovery.   This step included detailed review of fixed assets 
and updating those costs to current values using Engineering News-Record (ENR) 
Construction Cost Indexes from each asset’s acquisition date to June 2013.  This effort also 
including evaluating sewer facilities built under Assessment District 2 (AD 2), to avoid double 
charging properties within the AD 2 boundary for such facilities.  Based on this analysis, the 
consultant found the current value of existing water assets to approximately $42 million.  
Similarly, the current value of existing sewer system assets was found to be approximately 
$23.4 million, with about $12.5 million of that amount being attributable to sewer facilities that 
were paid for by Assessment District No. 2.  
 
The District’s projected capital improvements for water and sewer facilities for the next 10 
years was also analyzed, with each project being segregated for its share of cost associated 
with expansion, replacement, and operational needs.  To avoid double counting of existing 
assets within the fee analysis, future replacement costs were excluded.   This step found the 
future capital costs for water projects to be approximately $20 million over the next 10 years 
with about $3 million for expansion, $3 million for replacement, and $14 million for operational 
needs.  By adding the current value of existing fixed assets values and future capital needs, 
the total water system cost for fee recovery was determined to be about $54.7 million.  
Similarly, future capital costs for sewer projects over the next 10 years was found to be about 
$5.8 million, with $0.9 million for expansion, $2.7 million for replacement, and $2.2 million for 

66



  

operational needs.   The total sewer system cost for fee recover was found to be about $37.3 
million for properties within AD 2 and $48.6 million for properties outside of AD 2. 
 
Once recoverable values were determined, the capacity of facilities were compared to existing 
and projected demands to determine the cost per unit of capacity.  For water, this step 
included using the District’s 2010 adopted Urban Water Management Plan’s estimated 
production total at build-out and calculated a unit cost per gallon. The cost per gallon was then 
estimated for a single family residential EDU using a past census value of 2.2 persons per 
occupied home and the year 2020 conservation goal of 105 gallons per capita per day, which 
was further reduced by 75% to account for residential use.  For sewer, billing data was used to 
compute the number of existing residential EDUs and an equivalent number of commercial 
EDUs.   A ratio between the residential and commercial EDUs for sewer was then applied to 
future buildout demand after fixing the number of future residential connections at 4,650 EDUs.  
The total number of future residential and commercial EDUs was then divided into the 
recoverable cost to derive a cost per EDU.   
 
The end result of the calculations resulted in a proposed water capacity fee of $12,688 per 
EDU, and a proposed sewer capacity fee of $7,161 per EDU for properties within the 
boundaries of AD 2; or, $9,330 for properties outside the boundaries of AD 2.  In addition, 
based upon the recommendation of Bartle Wells, Resolution 35-2013 also provide that in 
addition to paying the capacity fees, that applicants will be responsible for paying all costs of 
making the physical connection to the CCSD’s water and/or sewer system, and will reimburse 
the CCSD for any actual costs incurred by the District. 
 
Further details on the study and recommended fees will be provided as part of a presentation 
by Bartle Wells Associates.   
 
 
 
Attached: Resolution 35-2013 
  August 8, 2013 Water and Sewer Capacity Fee Study by Bartle Wells Associates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ ROBINETTE ___RICE ____ 

67



 
RESOLUTION NO. 35-2013 

August 22, 2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
AMENDING THE CCSD FEE SCHEDULE TO PROVIDE  

FOR REVISED FEES TO CONNECT TO THE 
 WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 61115(a) authorizes the 
Cambria Community Services District to establish rates or other charges for 
services and facilities that the District provides; and  
 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 66013 governs the adoption of 
fees to connect to water and sewer systems; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current fees to connect to the CCSD water and sewer systems, 
previously referred to as “Connection Fees” have not been increased for many 
years and the District now wishes to increase the fees to connect to the water 
and sewer systems in accordance with the Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study 
prepared by Bartle Wells Associates dated August 8, 2013, and for consistency 
refer to such fees as “Capacity Fees”; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Water and Sewer Capacity Fees will be levied to recover costs 
for existing and future water and wastewater system facilities and assets that 
provide benefit to new development; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code sections 66016 and 66018, the Board 
of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District held a public hearing on 
August 22, 2013, as part of a regularly scheduled meeting, during which the 
District gave members of the public the opportunity to make oral or written 
presentations on the proposed increase to the District’s fees to connect to the 
water and sewer systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District published notice of the time and place of the August 22, 
2013 public hearing, including a general explanation of the matter to be 
considered, at least ten days before the hearing as required by Government 
Code sections 6062a and 66018; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 
66016, at least ten days before the public hearing, the District made data publicly 
available that indicates the estimated cost required to provide the services for 
which the fees are to be levied and the revenue sources anticipated to provide 
such services. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District does hereby 
resolve as follows: 
 

68



1. The Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study prepared by Bartle Wells 
Associates dated August 8, 2013, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby approved. 
 

2. The Water and Sewer Connection Fees set forth in the Cambria 
Community Services District Fee Schedule Section entitled Utility 
Services & Water Conservation, shall be referred to as Capacity 
Fees and are hereby amended as follows: 

 
Water Capacity Fee: $12,688 per EDU 
 
Sewer Capacity Fee for properties in Cambria Assessment District 
No. 2:   $ 7,161 per EDU 
 
Sewer Capacity Fee for properties outside of Cambria Assessment 
District No. 2:  $9,330 per EDU 
 
In addition to paying the Capacity Fees provided herein, the Fee 
Schedule is also hereby amended to provide that applicants shall 
be responsible for paying all costs of making the physical 
connection to the CCSD’s water and/or sewer system, and shall 
reimburse the CCSD any actual costs incurred by the District. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 22rd day of August 2013. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel 
      District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate 
District Clerk 

69



Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

August 8, 2013

70



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

August 8, 2013 
 
 
Cambria Community Services District 
1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201 
Cambria, CA 93428 
 
RE:    Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study 
 
Bartle Wells Associates is pleased to submit the attached Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study.  
The report develops updated capacity fees that are designed to equitably recover the costs of 
water and sewer infrastructure and assets benefiting new development.  Prior to this study, the 
District’s water and sewer capacity fees had not been updated in many years. 
 
The District’s combined water and sewer capacity fees are currently the lowest of 10 regional 
cities and communities surveyed.  The report develops the maximum allowable fees the District 
may charge as follows: 

 Water Capacity Fee:  $12,688 per EDU 

 Sewer Capacity Fee:  $7,161 per EDU 
 
Combined, these updated fees total $19,849 per EDU or single family home.  The proposed fees 
are significantly higher than the District’s current fees and are in the upper‐middle range 
compared to the current fees of other regional agencies.  The report also includes various 
recommendations for the application and implementation of the updated capacity fees. 
 
We enjoyed working with the District on this assignment and appreciate the input and 
assistance received from District staff throughout the project.  Please contact us anytime if you 
have questions about this report or related capacity fee issues. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
     
 
Alex Handlers, CIPFA    Alison Lechowicz   
Principal/Vice President    Financial Analyst   

1889 Alcatraz Avenue 
Berkeley, CA 94703 

510 653 3399  fax: 510 653 3769 
www.bartlewells.com 

71



 

 

 

CONTENTS 
 

1.  Background, Objectives, & Government Code .................................................................. 1 
District Overview ..................................................................................................................... 1 
Background & Objectives ........................................................................................................ 1 
Government Code ................................................................................................................... 2 

2.  District & Regional Capacity Fees ..................................................................................... 3 
Current District Water & Sewer Capacity Fees ....................................................................... 3 
Regional Water & Sewer Capacity Fees .................................................................................. 3 

3.  Capacity Fee Methodology ............................................................................................... 4 
General Fee Methodology ...................................................................................................... 4 
Average Cost Approach ........................................................................................................... 4 
Facility Cost Valuation ............................................................................................................. 5 

4.  Water Capacity Fee .......................................................................................................... 6 
Existing Water System Fixed Assets ........................................................................................ 6 
Water System Capital Improvements ..................................................................................... 6 
Historical & Projected Water Demand ................................................................................... 6 
Water Capacity Fee Calculation .............................................................................................. 7 
Regional Water Capacity Fee Survey ...................................................................................... 8 

5.  Sewer Capacity Fee .......................................................................................................... 9 
Existing Wastewater System Fixed Assets .............................................................................. 9 
Sewer System Capital Improvements ..................................................................................... 9 
Current & Projected Wastewater Demands ........................................................................... 9 
Sewer Capacity Fee Calculation ............................................................................................ 10 
Regional Sewer Capacity Fee Survey .................................................................................... 11 
Combined Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Survey ................................................................... 12 

6.  Capacity Fee Application ................................................................................................ 13 
Capacity Fee Ordinances:  Purpose of Fee ............................................................................ 13 
Use of Capacity Fee Revenues .............................................................................................. 13 
Capacity Fee Credits for Redevelopment ............................................................................. 13 
Term of Capacity Fee ............................................................................................................ 13 
Water Meter Size Determination ......................................................................................... 14 
Future Fee Adjustments ........................................................................................................ 14 

 

Capacity Fee Tables 
Tables deriving the updated capacity fees are included after the body of the report. 
 

Appendices 
Appendix A – Water & Wastewater Fixed Asset Valuation Detail 
Appendix B – Government Code Pertaining to Water & Sewer Capacity Charges

72



 

1 

1. Background, Objectives, & Government Code 

District Overview 

The Cambria Community Services District provides water, wastewater, fire protection, parks, 

recreation, and open space services to a population of approximately 6,400 in and around the 

unincorporated community of Cambria in San Luis Obispo County, California.  The District was 

formed in 1976 and is located on California’s Central Coast, roughly halfway between the cities 

of San Francisco and Los Angeles.  The District is governed by a five‐member board of directors 

elected at large to four‐year overlapping terms. 

 

Background & Objectives 

The District levies Water and  Sewer Connection Fees on new or expanded connections to the 

District’s water and sewer systems.  These fees are one‐time charges levied as a condition of 

development and should recover the proportional cost of infrastructure and assets benefitting 

new development.  These fees go by many names such as connection fees, development impact 

fees, and facility fees.  This report refers to these charges as “capacity fees” or “capacity 

charges”, in line with California Government Code.  The District’s capacity fees have not been 

updated in many years.  The District’s combined water and sewer capacity fees are currently 

the lowest of 10 regional cities and communities surveyed. 
 

In 2012, the District retained Bartle Wells Associates to update the District’s water and sewer 

capacity fees.  Key objectives of the study include developing updated capacity fees that: 

 Recover the full costs of water and sewer system infrastructure and assets that benefit new 

development to help ensure that growth pays its own way; 

 Equitably recover costs from new connections to the water and sewer systems based on the 

capacity needs of each new development; 

 Are consistent with industry‐standard practices and methodologies; 

 Comply with government code. 
 

This report presents key findings and recommendations for updated water and sewer capacity 

fees.  The recommended fees presented in this report were developed with substantial input 

from the District. 

73



 

2 

 

The capacity fees developed in this report do not recover costs for the District’s Buildout 

Reduction Program (BRP).  While the purpose of the BRP includes reducing long‐term demand 

on the District’s groundwater aquifers, further District policy direction is needed to assess the 

most appropriate means to fund the BRP program.  For example, a Parks and Recreation/Open 

Space impact fee could be developed for this purpose.  Excluding BRP cost‐recovery from the 

updated water and sewer capacity fees does not preclude the District from adopting a separate 

fee to recover BRP costs at some point in the future. 

 

Government Code 
Development impact fees are governed by California Government Code Section 66000 et. seq. 

commonly known as AB1600.  The Code refers to water and sewer impact fees as capacity 

charges since their purpose is to recover an equitable share of costs for capacity in 

infrastructure.  

 

Section 66013 of the Code specifically governs water and sewer capacity charges and states 

that the fee “shall not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which 

the fee or charge is imposed” unless approved by a two‐thirds vote.  As such, the capacity fees 

calculated in this report represent the maximum charges that the District can levy. 

 

The Code also states that "Capacity charge means a charge for public facilities in existence at 

the time a charge is imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed in 

the future that are of proportional benefit to the person or property being charged.”  The Code 

does not detail any specific method for determining an appropriate fee.    

 

Section 66013 also identifies various accounting requirements for capacity fee revenues, 

notably that such revenues cannot be co‐mingled with other District revenues and must be 

used solely for the purpose for which the fee was imposed.  Section 66016 of the Code 

identifies the procedural requirements for adopting or increasing a water or sewer capacity 

charge and Section 66022 summarizes the general process by which the charges can be legally 

challenges.  The full text of Sections 66013, 66016 and 66022 are attached as an appendix to 

this report. 
   

74



 

3 

2. District & Regional Capacity Fees 

Current District Water & Sewer Capacity Fees 
The District’s current water and sewer capacity fees per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) are 

listed below.  An EDU represents the demand of standard single family residence.   

 Water Connection Fee:  $3,255 per EDU 

 Sewer Connection Fee:  $2,170 per EDU 

 

The District assigns water and sewer EDUs based on each new connection’s estimated water 

demand and wastewater discharge, respectively, to ensure the capacity fees paid by each new 

connection equitably reflect the demand and associated infrastructure capacity needs of that 

connection.  For example, a new commercial connection with three times the water demand of 

standard single family home would be assigned three EDUs and pay a water capacity fee three 

times that of a single family home. 

 

Regional Water & Sewer Capacity Fees 
Regional Water Capacity Fees 

Based on a survey of regional water agencies, water capacity fees ranged from a low of $1,158 

per new single family home in Grover Beach to a high of $24,478 in Templeton Community 

Services District.  The District’s water capacity fee was the third lowest of agencies surveyed.  

Excluding the District’s current fees, the regional average was $10,651 and the regional median 

was $8,100. 

 

Regional Sewer Capacity Fees 

Based on a survey of regional wastewater agencies, the District’s sewer capacity fee of $2,170 

per EDU (or single family home) was the lowest in the region, with the highest fee at $7,960 in 

Cayucos Sanitary District.  Excluding the District’s current fees, the regional average totaled 

$5,073 and the regional median was $4,446. 

 

Combined Water & Sewer Capacity Fees 

The District’s combined water and sewer capacity fees total $5,425 and are currently the lowest 

combined fees of 10 regional cities and communities surveyed.  Excluding the District’s current 

fees, the regional average for combined water and sewer capacity fees was $15,746 (almost 

three times the District current fees) and the regional median was $14,671. 

75



 

4 

3. Capacity Fee Methodology 

General Fee Methodology 
The general methodology used to calculate updated water and sewer capacity fees in this 

report is summarized below.   
 

General Fee Methodology 
 

 
 

Average Cost Approach 
This report calculates new water and capacity fees under an average cost approach.  This is a 

widely used methodology for calculating water and sewer capacity fees.  Under this approach, 

the capacity fees recover a proportionate share of costs for both existing and future facilities 

that benefit growth.  The fee is calculated by dividing a) the total costs of existing and future 

water or wastewater facilities benefiting new development through buildout (in current 

dollars), by b) the total anticipated service capacity of the water or wastewater systems 

through buildout.  The resulting fees represent the average cost per EDU for total water or 

wastewater facilities through buildout.  

Step  4 ‐ Apply Cost per Unit to the Capacity Needs of New Development

Apply the unit cost for capacity to the infrastructure capacity needs of each new 
development to determine an equitable capacity charge per new connection.

Step 3 ‐ Calculate Cost per Unit of Capacity

Calculate the cost per unit of capacity by dividing the costs identified for fee recovery 
in Step 1 by the capacity of those facilities identified in Step 2

Step 2 ‐ Identify Capacity of Facilities

Identify the corresponding capacity of facilities and assets identified in Step 1

Step 1 ‐ Determine Cost of Facilities & Assets for Fee Recovery

Determine the recoverable cost of facilities and assets benefiting new 
development that will be recovered by the capacity fee

76



 

5 

 

Facility Cost Valuation 
The updated fees developed in this report determine the current valuation of existing assets by 

escalating the original purchase price of each asset into current dollars based on the change in 

the Engineering News‐Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index from each asset’s acquisition date 

to June 2013.  The ENR index is a widely‐used index for estimating construction cost inflation.  

This valuation approach ensures that new connections buy‐in for the full inflation‐adjusted cost 

of existing facilities.  At the same time, the valuation method used in this report does not 

account for a) the estimated cost of interest that future customers would have to pay existing 

customers for the implicit loan provided by existing customers prefunding facilities for growth, 

or b) the cost of maintaining capacity in existing infrastructure for growth.  This approach may 

also underestimate the actual replacement cost of District infrastructure. 
   

77



 

6 

4. Water Capacity Fee 

Existing Water System Fixed Assets 
Table W‐1 shows a summary of existing water system fixed assets along with costs escalated 

into current dollars based on the change in the Engineering News‐Record Construction Cost 

Index (20‐Cities Index) from the acquisition date to June 2013.  As shown on the table, the total 

cost of water system assets escalated into current dollars is roughly $42 million.  The actual cost 

of replacing the District’s water system would likely be substantially higher than this estimate.   

 

Water System Capital Improvements 
Table W‐2 details the District’s current Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  The 

District’s CIP identifies almost $20 million of capital improvements anticipated over the next 10 

years.  The District allocated the costs of each project to expansion (X), replacement (R), and/or 

operations (O) for improved system reliability.  The water capacity fees calculated in this report 

exclude costs allocated to replacement to ensure no double counting of existing assets and 

their replacement.   

 

Historical & Projected Water Demand 
Table W‐3 shows a history of metered water deliveries.  Actual water production has 

historically been a little higher than water sales due to a) unmetered water use, such as for fire 

protection, b) system maintenance usage, c) system loss, and d) metering differences between 

the District’s production meters and thousands of customer meters.  This metered usage data 

was used to estimate current water system demand.   

 

Chart A graphically shows historical metered water sales by customer type.  Water use declined 

slightly over 10% from peak‐year demand in 2006 through 2010/2011, then increased roughly 

6% in 2012.  Over the past 10 years, metered water deliveries averaged slightly over 660 acre‐

feet, or 215 million gallons per year. 

 

Table W‐4 summarizes water demand projections from the District’s 2010 Urban Water 

Management Plan.  Total water demand through buildout is projected to increase to 836 acre‐

feet per year, representing an increase of approximately 176 acre‐feet, or roughly 26.7% from 

current estimated water demand of 660 acre‐feet. 

 

 

78



 

7 

Water Capacity Fee Calculation 
Table W‐5 calculates an updated water capacity fee.  The fee conservatively recovers 90% of 

the current valuation of existing water system assets as well as anticipated water system capital 

improvement projects allocated to growth and operational reliability.  The fee does not recover 

costs for capital improvements allocated to replacement to ensure no double counting of cost 

recovery for existing facilities and their replacement.  Costs for fee recovery total $54.7 million. 

 

These costs are divided by the projected buildout capacity of the water system based on the 

2010 Urban Water Management Plan resulting in an average unit cost of $73.34 per gallon per 

day (gpd) or $150.31 per hundred cubic feet (hcf) of projected water demand. 

 

Water demand per standard single family residence or EDU is estimated at 173 gpd or 84.4 hcf 

per year based on a) an average of 2.2 people per home (conservative estimate based on 

historical census data) multiplied by b) 105 gallons per capita per day (the District’s 2020 

conservation demand target for total District water use), multiplied by c) 75% (to exclude an 

estimated 25% of water use required for non‐residential purposes that is included in the 105 

gallons per capita per day target). 

 

The updated capacity fee per EDU is calculated at $12,688.  This fee per EDU is calculated by 

multiplying the average unit cost (per million gallons or hcf) by the capacity requirements of a 

typical new single family home or EDU. 

 

   

79



 

8 

Regional Water Capacity Fee Survey 
The following chart compares regional water capacity charges for a new single family home.  

The chart includes the District’s current and proposed capacity charges.  Excluding the District’s 

fees, the regional average is $10,651 and the regional median is $8,100.   

 

 
   

80



 

9 

5. Sewer Capacity Fee 

Existing Wastewater System Fixed Assets 
Table S‐1 shows a summary of existing wastewater system fixed assets along with costs 

escalated into current dollars based on the change in the Engineering News‐Record 

Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Index) from the acquisition date to June 2013.  As shown on 

the table, the total cost of wastewater system assets escalated into current dollars is roughly 

$61.4 million.  The actual cost of replacing the District’s wastewater system would likely be 

substantially higher than this estimate.   

 

As shown on Table S‐2, some of the District’s wastewater facilities were previously funded by 

an Assessment District and related grants and are thereby excluded from the sewer capacity fee 

calculation.  The current value of these facilities is estimated at approximately $23.4 million 

based on the original cost of these facilities (based on the Revised Engineer’s Report dated June 

28, 1976 for Cambria Assessment District No. 2) escalated into current dollars based on the 

change in the ENR Construction Cost Index to June 2013.     

 

Sewer System Capital Improvements 
Table S‐3 details the District’s current Sewer Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  The District’s 

CIP identifies approximately $5.8 million of capital improvements anticipated over the next 10 

years.  The District allocated the costs of each project to expansion (X), replacement (R), and/or 

operations (O) for improved system reliability.  The sewer capacity fees calculated in this report 

exclude costs allocated to replacement to ensure no double counting of existing assets and 

their replacement.   

 

Current & Projected Wastewater Demands 
Table S‐4 shows current and projected wastewater demands in terms of EDUs.  The District’s 

sewer system current serves approximately 4,135 EDUs based on sewer billing data from the 

most recent fiscal year 2012/13.  Total sewer system demand through buildout is projected at 

5,210 EDUs including 4,650 residential EDUs (based on the San Luis Obispo County North Coast 

Area Plan) plus an estimated 560 non‐residential EDUs (based on the current ratio of non‐

residential to residential EDUs applied to residential buildout projections). 

 

81



 

10 

Sewer Capacity Fee Calculation 
Table S‐5 calculates an updated sewer capacity fee.  The fee conservatively recovers 90% of the 

current valuation of existing water system assets (excluding the current value of facilities 

funded by the Assessment District and related grants) as well as anticipated sewer system 

capital improvement projects allocated to growth and operational reliability.  The fee does not 

recover costs for capital improvements allocated to replacement to ensure no double counting 

of cost recovery for existing facilities and their replacement.  Costs for fee recovery total $37.3 

million. 

 

These costs are divided by 5,210 residential and commercial EDUs, the projected buildout 

service capacity of the District’s sewer system, resulting in an average unit cost of $7,161 per 

sewer EDU or single family home. 

 

Table S‐6 calculates an updated sewer capacity fee of $9,330 for properties outside of Cambria 

Assessment District No. 2.  These properties did not pay assessments to help fund District 

wastewater facilities and are not credited for projects funded by the assessments.  However, 

the fee calculation does account for the current value of facilities funded by grants and 

contributions related to Assessment District No. 2.  The District does not anticipate substantial 

development outside of the area that constituted Cambria Assessment District No. 2. 

 

   

82



 

11 

Regional Sewer Capacity Fee Survey 
The following chart compares regional sewer capacity charges for a new single family home.  

The chart includes the District’s current and proposed capacity charges.  Excluding the District’s 

fees, the regional average is $5,073 and the regional median is $4,446. 

 

 

   

83



 

12 

Combined Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Survey 
The following chart compares combined water and sewer capacity fees for a new single family 

home or EDU from 10 regional cities and communities.  The District’s combined water and 

sewer capacity fees are currently the lowest combined fees of the regional agencies surveyed. 

Excluding the District’s current fees, the regional average for combined water and sewer 

capacity fees was $15,746 and the regional median was $14,671.  The District’s proposed fees 

total $19,849 and are in the upper middle range compared to other agency’s current water and 

capacity charges. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84



 

13 

6. Capacity Fee Application 

This section highlights some key issues regarding the application and implementation of the 

updated capacity fees. 

 

Capacity Fee Ordinances:  Purpose of Fee 

Pursuant to Government Code, revenues derived from the District’s water and sewer capacity 

fees can only be used for the purpose for which the fees are collected.  In order to give the 

District maximum flexibility for use of capacity fee revenues, BWA recommends that the 

District’s fee ordinances broadly define the purpose of the fees, such as to recover costs for 

existing and future water system facilities and assets that provide benefit to new development.   

 

Use of Capacity Fee Revenues 

Capacity fee revenues derived from the portion of each fee used to recover costs for future 

capital improvement projects should be deposited into a segregated fund and used to help fund 

those capital projects, which exclude costs allocated to repairs and replacements.  The portion 

of the fee used to recover costs for existing facilities can be used to help fund any capital 

improvements, including repairs and replacements, since this portion of the fee is essentially a 

reimbursement for facilities funded by existing or prior ratepayers.  

 

Capacity Fee Credits for Redevelopment 

Capacity fees for redevelopment projects should be based on the incremental water and 

wastewater demand generated from the project.  For example, if a single family home is 

redeveloped as a mixed use residential and commercial development comprising 5 EDUs, the 

redevelopment project should be responsible for paying water and sewer capacity fees for the 

4 incremental EDUs generated by the project. 

 

Term of Capacity Fee 

Capacity fees should be paid up front as a condition of development subject to a will‐serve 

letter that allows the developer a period of time (typically one to two years) to complete their 

project and initiate water or sewer service.  The capacity fees should remain in effect for the 

term of the will‐serve letter, after which the developer should be responsible for paying for any 

increase in adopted capacity fees.  Other agencies have experienced problems with developers 

purchasing capacity many years in advance of anticipated development in order to lock in lower 

fees. 

85



 

14 

Water Meter Size Determination 

The District should retain the authority to determine or validate the appropriate water meter 

size for each new connection to ensure the proper meter size is installed.   

 

Future Fee Adjustments 

In future years, BWA recommends the District update its capacity fees annually or periodically 

by adjusting the fees by the change in the ENR Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Average) to 

account for future construction cost inflation.  The fee adjustment should be based on the 

change in the ENR index from the most recent preceding fee update, which allows for a multi‐

year adjustment if the District ever defers an annual adjustment.  The District’s capacity fee 

ordinance can include automatic annual fee adjustment.   

 

Additionally, the District should review and consider updating its capacity fees when substantial 

revisions are made to anticipated capital improvement needs or costs.  In general, BWA 

recommends that capacity charges be independently reviewed and/or updated approximately 

once every five years. 

 

86



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAPACITY FEE TABLES 
 
 
 

87



Water Capacity Fee Tables
Table W-1 - Water System Fixed Assets
Table W-2 - Water Capital Improvement Program
Table W-3 - Historical Metered Water Deliveries
Table W-4 - Water Demand Projections
Table W-5 - Water Capacity Fee Calculation

Sewer Capacity Fee Tables
Table S-1 - Wastewater System Fixed Assets
Table S-2 - Assessment District Funding & Grant Contributions
Table S-3 - Sewer Capital Improvement Program
Table S-4 - Wastewater Demand Projections
Table S-5 - Sewer Capacity Fee Calculation
Table S-6 - Sewer Capacity Fee for Properties Outside AD No. 2

Charts
Chart A - Annual Metered Water Deliveries
Chart B - Water Capacity Fee Survey
Chart C - Sewer Capacity Fee Survey
Chart D - Combined Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Survey

Cambria Community Services District
Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study
List of Tables & Charts

88



Water Capacity Fee Tables

89



Table W-1

Depreciation Depreciated 

Category Cost Basis as of 6/30/12 Book Value Book Value Cost Basis

Land $812,416 $0 $812,416 $812,416 $812,416

Distribution System 4,552,685 1,256,139 3,296,546 4,038,263 6,329,147

Wells 1,667,919 870,513 797,406 1,163,788 2,434,274

Pipelines 9,488,707 7,237,756 2,250,951 5,592,654 25,241,437

Fiscalini Waterline 732,024 102,483 629,541 806,753 938,084

Radio Meters 710,342 473,561 236,781 303,433 910,299

Creek Restoration 86,533 0 86,533 86,533 86,533

General Plant 671,472 473,388 198,084 283,240 2,762,974

Machinery and Equipment 299,665 282,053 17,612 27,736 529,262

Vehicles 171,766 171,766 0 0 274,395

Water Master Plan 1,611,290 0 1,611,290 1,611,290 1,611,290

Total 20,804,819 10,867,659 9,937,160 14,726,106 41,930,110

Source: Fixed Asset Depreciation Schedule as of June 30, 2012 (with revisions through 5/30/13).
* Costs adjusted by the change in the Engineering News-Record 20-Cities Construction Cost Index. 

Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Water System Fixed Assets

ENR-Adjusted Cost (Jun 2013)*

Water System Fixed Assets

90



Table W-2
Cambria Community Services District
Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study
Water Capital Improvement Program

Priority Total Cost Expn Repl Ops Expansion Replacement Operations
Description Ranking (Current $) X R O X R O

Water CIP Projects
Long-term water supply project 1 $13,700,000 20% 0% 80% $2,740,000 $0 $10,960,000
Water Project specialty consulting (D.C. advocate & permitting assistance) 1 266,000       20% 0% 80% 53,200           0                    212,800         
Well SR-4: filter media, chlorination improvements, & added alarms 1 131,647       0% 75% 25% 0                    98,735           32,912           
Water Master Plan Update (revised fire flow modeling) 2 30,000         20% 0% 80% 6,000             0                    24,000           
Water System Assessment (audit of existing facilities) 2 0                  20% 0% 80% 0                    0                    0                    
Water pipelines, pumps, and PRV repairs and replacements 2 500,000       0% 100% 0% 0                    500,000         0                    
Piney Way erosion control protection for existing pipeline 2 5,000           0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    5,000             
Rodeo Grounds Pump Station Replacement (aka Zone 2 Booster pump station) 1 1,026,000    20% 0% 80% 205,200         0                    820,800         
Stuart Street Tank III 2 776,000       20% 0% 80% 155,200         0                    620,800         
SCADA system - Interim Water Improvements (auto-dialer updates) 2 20,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    20,000           0                    
SCADA System - Long-term Water Portion 2 350,000       0% 50% 50% 0                    175,000         175,000         
Rehab Fiscalini Tank (patch & paint) 1 30,000         0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    30,000           
Fiscallini Tank replacement (320,000 gallons) 2 640,000       0% 100% 0% 0                    640,000         0                    
Well SS2 Motor Control Center replacement 3 30,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    30,000           0                    
Electrical transfer switch and conduit to well SS-3 1 10,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    10,000           0                    
San Simeon well field generator replacement 2 100,000       0% 75% 25% 0                    75,000           25,000           
Leimert Tank - Seismic Upgrade 3 180,000       0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    180,000         
Compound Meter Upgrades 1 60,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    60,000           0                    
Water Meter Replacements & Upgrades 3 900,000       0% 75% 25% 0                    675,000         225,000         
Water Yard Relocation 3 310,000       0% 25% 75% 0                    77,500           232,500         
Parcel-tied GIS facility mapping with query/viewing  capability 3 40,000         0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    40,000           
Database for wtr conserv. prog./tracking w/ parcel links & APN file conversion 3 20,000         80% 0% 20% 16,000           0                    4,000             
Fire hydrant replacements and additions 3 55,000         0% 80% 20% 0                    44,000           11,000           
Annual valve box raising & adjusting 3 60,000         0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    60,000           
Pine Knolls - Iva Court zone 1 pipeline expansion 3 165,000       0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    165,000         
Administrative Offices - est'd water proportion @ 1/3 total 4 450,000       0% 100% 0% 0                    450,000         0                    
Finance/billing software upgrade (water est'd @ 50%) 3 75,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    75,000           0                    
Trailer Mounted Air Compressor 1 10,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    10,000           0                    
Trailer Mounted Vactor 1 10,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    10,000           0                    _________ _____ _____ _____ _________ _________ _________

Total 19,949,647  15.9% 14.8% 69.3% 3,175,600      2,950,235      13,823,812    
_______________

Source: Water & Wastewater Capital Program Draft 06/18/13.

Cost Allocation % Cost Allocation $

91



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

 Other/Ag
 Comm/Inst
 Multi‐Family
 Single Family

Cambria Community Services District
Annual Metered Water Deliveries (Acre‐Feet)

Chart A

92



Table W-3

Cambria Community Services District

Historical Metered Water Deliveries

Year Million Gallons MGD Acre-Feet % Change

1999 215 0.590 660.5

2000 221 0.607 679.6 2.9%

2001 226 0.619 693.2 2.0%

2002 228 0.625 700.1 1.0%

2003 230 0.631 707.4 1.0%

2004 215 0.589 659.4 -6.8%

2005 210 0.576 645.5 -2.1%

2006 224 0.614 688.3 6.6%

2007 221 0.605 677.6 -1.6%

2008 218 0.597 668.9 -1.3%

2009 215 0.590 660.5 -1.3%

2010 202 0.553 619.0 -6.3%

2011 202 0.554 621.1 0.3%

2012 215 0.588 658.3 6.0%

Average 217 0.596 667

10-Year Average 215 0.590 661

5-Year Average 210 0.576 646

Source: Department of Water Resources Public Water System Statistics reports completed by the

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Metered Water Deliveries

District each year.

93



Table W-4

Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Water Demand Projections

Year Acre Feet Million Gallons Acre Feet Million Gallons %

Current1 660.0 215.1

2015 740.0 241.1 80.0 26.1 12.1%

2020 798.7 260.3 138.7 45.2 21.0%

2025 836.0 272.4 176.0 57.3 26.7%

2030 836.0 272.4 176.0 57.3 26.7%

2035 836.0 272.4 176.0 57.3 26.7%

2 Water demand for 2015-2035 from 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, Table 3-12.
1 Source: Estimated based on recent historical water deliveries to District customers.

Projected Annual Demand2 Increase

94



Table W-5 Average Cost Approach

Cambria Community Services District (Total Costs / Total Capacity)

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Water Capacity Fee Calculation

COSTS FOR FEE RECOVERY Total Cost % Included Costs Recovered

Total System Costs (Excluding Replacements)

Existing Water System Fixed Assets $41,930,110 90% $37,737,099

Water CIP: Growth-Related Projects 3,175,600 100% 3,175,600

Water CIP: Operational Improvement Projects 13,823,812 100% 13,823,812

Water CIP: Replacement Projects Excluded Excluded 

Subtotal 58,929,522 54,736,511

Total Costs for Fee Recovery 54,736,511

TOTAL CAPACITY THROUGH 2025 MG/year hcf/year

Current Annual Demand 78.9% 215.1 287,496

Expansion Capacity Through 2025 21.1% 57.3 76,666

Total Capacity Through 2025 272.4 364,162

CAPACITY FEE: UNIT COST $ per gpd $ per hcf

Per Unit of Annual Water Demand $73.34 $150.31

CAPACITY FEE PER EDU gpd hcf

173 84.4

Capacity Fee per EDU $12,688 $12,688

* Based on an average of 2.2 people per home (conservative estimate based on historical census data)
   x 105 gallons per capita per day (District's 2020 conservation demand target for all water use per capita) 
   x 75% (District estimate of the percentage of residential water use; excludes non-residential use).

Demand per New Single Family Residence or EDU

95



1,158 1,500
2,422

3,255

5,332 5,347

8,100

11,217

12,688

17,383

19,600
20,620

24,478

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

Water Capacity Fee Survey
Single Family Residence - July 2013

Current

Proposed

Chart B

96



Table S-1

Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Wastewater System Fixed Assets

Depreciation Depreciated 

Category Cost Basis as of 6/30/12 Book Value Book Value Cost Basis

Wastewater System Fixed Aassets

Land $1,009,010 $0 $1,009,010 $1,615,514 $1,615,514

Collection System 10,785,362 8,686,790 2,098,573 5,475,453 31,398,182

Biosolids 1,908,339 757,854 1,150,485 1,501,395 2,704,995

Creek Restoration 512,312 34,650 477,662 582,140 632,711

Original Treatment Plant 4,909,992 3,872,945 1,037,047 2,828,769 13,737,445

Treatment Plan Upgrade 5,498,434 3,115,778 2,382,656 4,204,014 9,701,564

General Plant 327,190 287,568 39,622 75,843 670,390

Machinery and Equipment 519,742 463,238 56,504 67,656 407,497

Vehicles 346,610 338,258 8,352 9,299 571,431

Total 25,816,991 17,557,080 8,259,911 16,360,083 61,439,728

Source: Fixed Asset Depreciation Schedule as of June 30, 2012 (with revisions through 5/30/13).

ENR-Adjusted Cost to June 2013*

* Costs adjusted by the change in the Engineering News-Record 20-Cities Construction Cost Index.

97



Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Assessment District Funding & Grant Contributions

Acquisition Cost ENR Cost ENR-Adjusted Cost

& Funding Sources1 Adjustment2 to June 20132

Cambria Assessment District No. 2 Project Costs

Cost of Construction (including contingencies) $5,784,514 2.9478 $17,051,539

Cost of Right-of-Way Acquisitions 120,000 2.9478 353,735

Cost of Acquisition of Treatment & Disposal Rights 257,131 2.9478 757,968

Incidental Costs 1,780,425 2.9478 5,248,321

  Total Costs 7,942,070 23,411,564

Funding Sources

Grants and Contributions 3,683,015 2.9478 10,856,759

Assessment District No. 2 4,259,055 2.9478 12,554,805

  Total Funding Sources 7,942,070 23,411,564

_______________

1 Source: Revised Engineer's Report dated June 28, 1976 for Cambria Assessment District No. 2
2 Based on the change in the Engineering News-Record Construction Cost Index (20-Cities Average) from 1980 through June 2013.

Table S-2

98



Table S-3

Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Sewer Capital Improvement Program

Priority Total Cost Expn Repl Ops Expansion Replacement Operations
Description Ranking (Current $) X R O X R O

Sewer CIP Projects
WWTP Master Plan 1 50,000           20% 40% 40% 10,000           20,000           20,000           
Collection System Phase II assessment/recs from FY2012/2013 videotape finding 1 23,715           0% 50% 50% 0                    11,858           11,858           
Collection System Assessment software (t4 Spatial) 2 11,000           0% 0% 0% 0                    0                    0                    
Collection system remote flow monitors (I.e., 10 "smart covers") 1 25,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    12,500           12,500           
Collection System pipeline repairs (identified in annual colln system inspections) 1 525,000         0% 100% 0% 0                    525,000         0                    
Collection System Phase III assessment/recs from FY 2013/2014 videotape findin 1 9,000             0% 50% 50% 0                    4,500             4,500             
Collection System assessment/recs from FY 2014/2015 videotape findings 1 18,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    9,000             9,000             
Collection System assessment/recs from FY 2015/2016 videotape findings 1 18,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    9,000             9,000             
Collection System assessment/recs from FY 2016/2017 videotape findings 1 18,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    9,000             9,000             
Collection System assessment/recs from FY 2017/2018 videotape findings 1 9,000             0% 50% 50% 0                    4,500             4,500             
SCADA System - Wastewater Collections - interim improvements 1 38,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    19,000           19,000           
SCADA System - Wastewater Collections & WWTP - long-term improvements 2 440,000         20% 40% 40% 88,000           176,000         176,000         
Power Reduction & Reliability Study 2 0                    0% 50% 50% 0                    0                    0                    
Plant emergency power generator upgrade 2 80,000           20% 40% 40% 16,000           32,000           32,000           
Plant electrical & instrumentation improvements 2 225,000         20% 40% 40% 45,000           90,000           90,000           
Aeration D.O. control system 2 200,000         20% 40% 40% 40,000           80,000           80,000           
Replace aeration blower motor 1 10,000           0% 100% 0% 0                    10,000           0                    
Upgrade/replace aeration blowers 2 180,000         20% 40% 40% 36,000           72,000           72,000           
WWTP Influent screening, pumping, & grit removal hydraulic improvements 1 390,000         20% 40% 40% 78,000           156,000         156,000         
Lift Station A (Nottingham & Leighton/Park Hill) new control panel at grade el. 1 30,000           20% 40% 40% 6,000             12,000           12,000           
Lift Station A (Nottingham & Leighton/Park Hill) new submsersible pumps, MCC, b 2 210,000         20% 40% 40% 42,000           84,000           84,000           
Lift Station A-1 (Sherwood & Harvey/Marine Terrace) new control panel at grade e 1 30,000           20% 40% 40% 6,000             12,000           12,000           
Lift Station A-1 (Sherwood & Harvey/Marine Terrace) submersible pumps, MCC, b 2 125,000         20% 40% 40% 25,000           50,000           50,000           
Lift Sation 4 (DeVault Pl/Seaclift Estates)  VFDs /new elect panel & 3 phase pump 3 85,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    42,500           42,500           
Lift Sation 8 (Hillcrest/Pine Knolls) new elect panel, VFDs & 3-phase motors 2 15,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    7,500             7,500             
Lift Sation 9 (Moonstone Beach Dr.)  generator replacement 1 35,000           0% 100% 0% 0                    35,000           0                    
Lift Station 9 (Moonstone Beach Dr.)  new submsersible pumps, MCC, & generato 2 160,000         0% 50% 50% 0                    80,000           80,000           
Lift Sation B improvements (SR Creek/behind Park Hill) new control panel 1 30,000           20% 40% 40% 6,000             12,000           12,000           
Lift Station B - replace existing corroded self-priming pump 1 20,000           0% 100% 0% 0                    20,000           0                    
Lift Station B - new wet well, submersible pumps, and valve vault 1 284,000         20% 40% 40% 56,800           113,600         113,600         
Lift Station B - replace existing generator 2 60,000           20% 40% 40% 12,000           24,000           24,000           

Cost Allocation % Cost Allocation $

99



Table S-3

Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Sewer Capital Improvement Program

Priority Total Cost Expn Repl Ops Expansion Replacement Operations
Description Ranking (Current $) X R O X R O

Cost Allocation % Cost Allocation $

Lift Station B-1 (Village Ln/Tin City) reloacted new submserible pump sta. & gener 2 320,000         20% 40% 40% 64,000           128,000         128,000         
Lift Station B-1 (Village Ln/Tin City) new electrical panel 1 30,000           20% 40% 40% 6,000             12,000           12,000           
Lift Station B-2 (Wood Dr./E. Lodge Hill) new control panel at grade el. 1 30,000           20% 40% 40% 6,000             12,000           12,000           
Lift Station B-2 (Wood Dr./E. Lodge Hill) relocate new submsersible station across 2 245,000         20% 40% 40% 49,000           98,000           98,000           
Lift Station B-3 (Green St./W. Lodge Hill), new control panel & level sensor 1 30,000           20% 40% 40% 6,000             12,000           12,000           
Lift Station B-3 (Green St./W. Lodge Hill) new submserible pumps, MCC, bypass 2 200,000         20% 40% 40% 40,000           80,000           80,000           
Lift Station B-4 (Green & Gleason/W. Lodge Hill) new MCC and transfer switch 1 60,000           20% 40% 40% 12,000           24,000           24,000           
Lift Station B-4 (Green & Gleason/W. Lodge Hill) new submserible pumps, bypass 2 260,000         20% 40% 40% 52,000           104,000         104,000         
Non-potable water system for screw press sprays 3 5,000             100% 0% 0% 5,000             0                    0                    
Dewatered biosolids storage (2 trailers and/or covered material bins) 2 40,000           20% 40% 40% 8,000             16,000           16,000           
Sanitary sewer service to well SR-4 treatment facility and CUHS septic tanks 1 60,000           0% 0% 100% 0                    0                    60,000           
WWTP Denitrification Process Upgrades 3 250,000         20% 40% 40% 50,000           100,000         100,000         
Flow equalization improvements 3 200,000         20% 40% 40% 40,000           80,000           80,000           
Parcel-tied database upgrade with GIS query/viewing  capability 3 40,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    20,000           20,000           
Finance/billing software upgrade (wastewater est'd @ 50%) 3 75,000           0% 50% 50% 0                    37,500           37,500           
Administrative Offices - est'd wastewater proportion @ 1/3 total 4 450,000         20% 40% 40% 90,000           180,000         180,000         
Annual manhole raising 2 165,000         0% 50% 50% 0                    82,500           82,500           ___________ ______ ______ ______ ___________ ___________ ___________

Total 5,813,715      15.4% 46.8% 37.7% 894,800         2,718,958      2,188,958      
_______________

Source: Water & Wastewater Capital Program Draft 06/18/13.

100



Cambria Community Services District

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

Wastewater Demand Projections

Residential Non-Residential Total EDUs % 

Current Demand (EDUs)1 3,690 445 4,135

Buildout Demand (EDUs)2,3 4,650 560 5,210 1,075 29.1%
_______________

1 Current EDUs based on 2012/13 sewer billing data from Account & Class Summary reports.
2 Buildout Residential EDUs based on San Luis Obispo County North Coast Area Plan
3 Buildout Non-Residential EDUs estimated based on current ratio of Non-Residential to Residential EDUs.

Table S-4

Sewer EDUs Increase

101



Table S-5 Average Cost Approach

Cambria Community Services District (Total Costs / Total Capacity)

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

COSTS FOR FEE RECOVERY Total Cost % Included Costs Recovered

Total System Costs (Excluding Replacements)

Existing Wastewater System Fixed Assets $61,439,728

Less Assessment District & Grants/Contributions (23,411,564)

  Subtotal 38,028,164 90% 34,225,348

Wastewater CIP: Growth-Related Projects 894,800 100% 894,800

Wastewater CIP: Operational Improvements 2,188,958 100% 2,188,958

Wastewater CIP: Replacement Projects Excluded Excluded 

Subtotal 41,111,922 37,309,105

Total Costs for Fee Recovery 37,309,105

TOTAL CAPACITY THROUGH 2025 EDUs

Current Annual Demand 4,135

Expansion Capacity Through 2025 1,075

Total Capacity Through 2025 5,210

CAPACITY FEE PER EDU $ per EDU

Total Cost / Total Capacity $7,161

Sewer Capacity Fee Calculation

102



Table S-6 Average Cost Approach

Cambria Community Services District (Total Costs / Total Capacity)

Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Study

For Properties Outside Cambria Assessment District No. 2

COSTS FOR FEE RECOVERY Total Cost % Included Costs Recovered

Total System Costs (Excluding Replacements)

Existing Wastewater System Fixed Assets $61,439,728

Less Grants/Contributions (10,856,759)

  Subtotal 50,582,969 90% 45,524,672

Wastewater CIP: Growth-Related Projects 894,800 100% 894,800

Wastewater CIP: Operational Improvements 2,188,958 100% 2,188,958

Wastewater CIP: Replacement Projects Excluded Excluded 

Subtotal 53,666,727 48,608,430

Total Costs for Fee Recovery 48,608,430

TOTAL CAPACITY THROUGH 2025 EDUs

Current Annual Demand 4,135

Expansion Capacity Through 2025 1,075

Total Capacity Through 2025 5,210

CAPACITY FEE PER EDU $ per EDU

Total Cost / Total Capacity $9,330

Sewer Capacity Fee Calculation 

103



2,170

2,975
3,454 3,559

4,203
4,446

5,441

6,022

7,161
7,600

7,960

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

Sewer Capacity Fee Survey
Single Family Residence - July 2013 

Current

Proposed

Chart C

1 ‐ Includes South San Luis Obispo Counity Sanitation District's connection fee.

104



3,255
2,422

1,158

5,332 5,347

11,217

8,100

12,688

17,383

20,620

24,478

2,170 

4,446 6,022 
2,975 

3,559 

3,454 
7,960 

7,161 

4,203 

7,600 

5,441 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

Combined Water & Sewer Capacity Fee Survey
Single Family Residence - July 2013 

Current

Proposed

Chart D

1 ‐ Includes South San Luis Obispo Counity Sanitation District's connection fee.

105



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 

106



Table A-1
Cambria Community Services District
Water System Fixed Assets ENR-CCI 20-Cities, June 2013: 9542

Acquisition Life Original Accumulated Depreciated Original
Water Fixed Assets Year (mos) Cost Depreciation Net Book Value ENR RCNLD Acq. Cost Basis Excl <$50,000

 Land 812,416       0 812,416                  812,416       812,416                  812,416             
Acct 1400

Pine Knolls Tank 2008 360 3,347,159    404,448            2,942,711               8310 3,378,983    3,843,392 3,843,392          
Water Tank Top Of World 1993 360 855,565       541,860            313,705                  5210 574,543       1,566,948 1,566,948          
Leimert Water Tank 1988 480 99,307         59,176              40,131                    4519 84,737         209,689 209,689             
Orig 3 Wells & Addtn's 1963 240 15,079         15,079              -                         901 -               159,693 159,693             
Water Tanks 1981 240 47,700         47,700              -                         3535 -               128,756 128,756             
System Improvements 1982 240 22,369         22,369              -                         3825 -               55,803 55,803               
S/R Creek Filtration 1985 240 103,489       103,489            -                         4195 -               235,397 235,397             
S/R Booster Pump 1988 180 28,216         28,216              -                         4519 -               59,579 59,579               
S/S Standby Gen Well 1&2 1989 180 33,802         33,802              -                         4615 -               69,889 69,889               

Acct 1410 Total 4,552,685    1,256,139         3,296,546               4,038,263    6,329,147               6,329,147          

SR-4 Well High School 2002 240 1,462,148    767,626            694,522                  6538 1,013,632    2,133,958 2,133,958          
SR-4 Well High School 2002 240 205,771       102,887            102,884                  6538 150,156       300,316 300,316             

Acct 1411 Total 1,667,919    870,513            797,406                  1,163,788    2,434,274               2,434,274          

Valve Raising 1993 240 28,200         26,790 1,410                     5210 2,582           51,648 51,648               
Water Lines Unit 1,3A,4A 1981 480 6,801,845    5,299,768 1,502,077               3535 4,054,546    18,360,171 18,360,171        
Additions 1975 240 248,421       248,421 -                         2212 -               1,071,624 1,071,624          
Water Lines Unit5 1982 480 369,633       281,849 87,784                    3825 218,990       922,101 922,101             
Water Lines Unit 4A/6 1983 480 460,717       339,781 120,936                  4066 283,811       1,081,201 1,081,201          
Water Lines Unit 7 1984 480 422,966       301,360 121,606                  4146 279,876       973,454 973,454             
Water Line Unit 8 Lodge Hill 1985 480 353,588       243,098 110,490                  4195 251,321       804,276 804,276             
Water Line Unit 9 Lodge Hill 1987 480 105,669       71,332 34,337                    4406 74,362         228,846 228,846             
Water Line Unit 10 Lodge Hill 1988 480 214,149       131,171 82,978                    4519 175,210       452,182 452,182             
Pumping Plant 1969 240 19,363         19,363 -                         1269 -               145,596 145,596             
Trans & Dist Plant 1960 600 44,419         44,419 0                            824 2                  514,376 514,376             
Valve Raising 92 1991 240 73,485         73,485 -                         4835 -               145,024 145,024             
 Pineridge Main 1999 240 55,481         36,409 19,072                    6059 30,035         87,375 87,375               
SS Well Raising 2000 240 154,921       93,598 61,323                    6221 94,059         237,624 237,624             
99 Valve Raising 2000 240 31,195         18,719 12,477                    6221 19,137         47,848
Warren Agreement Pipeline 2008 480 72,065         7,582 64,483                    8310 74,043         82,749 82,749               
Leffingwell Bridge Pipes 2010 480 32,590         611 31,979                    8799 34,679         35,342

Acct 1420 Total 9,488,707    7,237,756 2,250,951               5,592,654    25,241,437             25,158,247        

Fiscalini Waterline 2005 600 732,024       102,483 629,541                  7446 806,753       938,084 938,084             
Acct 1421 Total 732,024       102,483 629,541                  806,753       938,084                  938,084             

Radio Meters (AMR) 2005 120 710,342       473,561 236,781                  7446 303,433       910,299 910,299             
Acct 1422 Total 710,342       473,561 236,781                  303,433       910,299                  910,299             

Creek Restoration-NON DEPRECIABLE 86,533         0 86,533                    86,533         86,533 86,533               
Acct 1436 Total 86,533         0 86,533                    86,533         86,533 86,533               

Radio Stuart St 1993 120 7,856           7,856 -                         5210 -               14,388
Pine St Water Main 1995 240 29,213         25,078 4,135                     5471 7,212           50,951 50,951               
General Plant Equip 1965 120 24,893         24,893 -                         971 -               244,623 244,623             
General Plant Vehicle & Equip 1962 120 152,965       152,965 -                         872 -               1,673,844 1,673,844          
6/82 WP H-14 1980 120 37,789         37,789 -                         3237 -               111,394 111,394             

1980 60 5,036           5,036 -                         3237 -               14,845
Equip Acq Acct 117 1982 120 9,262           9,262 -                         3825 -               23,105
General Plant Bldg 1983 240 36,464         36,464 -                         4066 -               85,573 85,573               
Charing Lane Pressure Reg 1988 180 10,817         10,817 (0)                           4519 (1)                 22,840
Chemical Feed Unit 1999 120 9,295           9,295 1                            6059 1                  14,638
Water Yard Bank Protection 2000 240 208,713       126,100 82,613                    6221 126,715       320,132 320,132             
2840 ft RC Water Line(Purple) 2004 480 139,169       27,833 111,336                  7115 149,313       186,641 186,641             

Acct 1460 Total 671,472       473,388 198,084                  283,240       2,762,974               2,673,157          

ENR-Adjusted Cost

107



Table A-1
Cambria Community Services District
Water System Fixed Assets ENR-CCI 20-Cities, June 2013: 9542

Acquisition Life Original Accumulated Depreciated Original
Water Fixed Assets Year (mos) Cost Depreciation Net Book Value ENR RCNLD Acq. Cost Basis Excl <$50,000

ENR-Adjusted Cost

S/S Standby Gen Well 1&2 1989 180 33,802         33,802 (0)                           4615 (0)                 69,889 69,889               
1981 Ford 1 ton PU 1984 60 8,671           8,671 -                         4146 -               19,956
Water Meters 1983 60 12,018         12,018 -                         4066 -               28,204
Ditch Witch 1984 60 8,874           8,874 -                         4146 -               20,423
Ditch Witch 1985 60 8,680           8,680 -                         4195 -               19,744
John Deere 850 Tractor 1987 60 8,110           8,110 -                         4406 -               17,564
Various studies 1990 60 42,687         42,687 -                         4732 -               86,078 86,078               
Misc(ULD Adj) 1900 60 9,815           9,815 -                         
Misc(94/95 Adj) 1995 60 25,957         25,957 -                         5471 -               45,272
Leimert Generator 1999 180 32,685         28,085 4,600                     6059 7,244           51,474 51,474               
Stuart Street Generator 1999 180 29,739         25,446 4,293                     6059 6,761           46,834
John Deere Tractor 1999 60 25,652         25,652 -                         6059 -               40,398
Diesel Fuel tank 1999 60 15,601         15,601 -                         6059 -               24,569
Genset Portable Generator 1999 180 37,374         28,656 8,718                     6059 13,730         58,858 58,858               

Acct 1470 Total 299,665       282,053 17,612                    27,736         529,262                  266,299             

 Vehicles(93/94 Adj) 1994 60 67,677         67,677 -                         5408 -               119,411 119,411             
Vehicles(95/96 Adj) 1996 60 10,909         10,909 -                         5620 -               18,522
Vehicle 1998 60 17,960         17,960 -                         5920 -               28,948
2000 Ford PickUp 1999 60 20,447         20,447 -                         6059 -               32,201
Ford F-350 PickUp 2003 60 35,575         35,575 -                         6694 -               50,711 50,711               
Ford 2005 F150 PickUp 2005 60 19,198         19,198 (0)                           7446 (0)                 24,602

Acct 1472 Total 171,766       171,766            (0)                           (0)                 274,395                  170,121             

Water Master Plan 2008 1,611,290    0 1,611,290               1,611,290    1,611,290               1,611,290          

Total Water 20,804,819  10,867,659       9,937,159               14,726,105  41,930,110             41,389,867        

108



Table A-2
Cambria Community Services District
Wastewater System Fixed Assets ENR-CCI 20-Cities, June 2013: 9542

Acquisition Life Original Accumulated Depreciated Original
Wastewater Fixed Assets Year (mos) Cost Depreciation Net Book Value ENR Net Bk Value Acq. Cost Basis Excl <$50,000

Land 1998 968,993          0 968,993            5920 1,561,846            1,561,846               1,561,846               
Heath Lane 2004 40,017            0 40,017               7115 53,667                 53,667                    53,667                    

 Acct 1400 Total 1,009,010       -                      1,009,010         1,615,514            1,615,514               1,615,514               

Manhole Raising 1993 240 135,382          129,612 5,770                 5210 10,568                 247,949                  247,949                  
Station 9 Moonstone Beach 1993 240 49,514            48,279 1,235                 5210 2,262                   90,684                    90,684                    
Station B-4 Green St 1993 240 56,587            55,170 1,417                 5210 2,595                   103,638                  103,638                  
Station A-1 Sherwood/Harvey 1993 240 38,904            37,930 974                    5210 1,783                   71,252                    71,252                    
Station B-1 Burton Dr 1993 240 31,830            31,038 792                    5210 1,451                   58,296                    58,296                    
Collection Facitity 1974 480 1,800,247       1,689,605 110,642            2020 522,646               8,503,939               8,503,939               
Collection Facitity -WP h12 1981 480 7,238,140       5,700,048 1,538,092         3535 4,151,761            19,537,859             19,537,859             
Additional Costs 1982 456 13,296            10,521 2,775                 3825 6,922                   33,169                    
Lift Sta # 1 1982 480 48,075            35,458 12,617               3825 31,474                 119,930                  119,930                  
Lift Sta #4 1983 480 55,440            39,501 15,939               4066 37,405                 130,105                  130,105                  
Lift Sta #9 1986 180 71,370            71,370 -                     4295 -                       158,559                  158,559                  
Resorvior Van Gordon/Ranch 1983 480 158,439          112,889 45,550               4066 106,896               371,821                  371,821                  
Additional cost AD 2 1983 456 42,985            34,025 8,960                 4066 21,027                 100,876                  100,876                  
Manhole Raising 92 1991 240 84,906            84,906 (0)                       4835 (0)                         167,564                  167,564                  
Flow Equal Basins 1990 360 562,496          449,999 112,497            4732 226,848               1,134,264               1,134,264               
Force Main Modification 1991 120 30,950            30,950 0                        4835 0                          61,080                    61,080                    
ULD Adj 120 13,561            13,561 -                     
Force Main Eng 120 10,397            10,397 0                        
99 Manhole Raising 2000 240 41,626            24,974 16,652               6221 25,542                 63,847                    63,847                    
Lift Sta B-9 Force Main Upg 2000 480 174,685          52,405 122,280            6221 187,558               267,938                  267,938                  
Force Main 2000 480 84,988            23,373 61,615               6221 94,507                 130,358                  130,358                  
Leffingwell Bridge Pipes 2010 480 41,545            779 40,766               8799 44,208                 45,053                    

Acct 1430 Total 10,785,362     8,686,790 2,098,573 5,475,453            31,398,182             31,319,960             

Bio-Solids Screw Press 2008 240 1,046,151       198,333 847,818            8310 973,512               1,201,249               1,201,249               
Effluent Disp Pond 1995 300 862,188          559,521 302,667            5471 527,883               1,503,747               1,503,747               

Acct 1435 Total 1,908,339       757,854 1,150,485         1,501,395            2,704,995               2,704,995               

Bank Protection 2000 0 99,967            0 99,967               6221 153,333               153,333                  153,333                  
Pond E & Berms 266,451          0 266,451            266,451               266,451                  266,451                  
Acct 1436 Total (Nondepreciable) 366,418          0 366,418            419,784               419,784                  419,784                  

 Move Sewer Line-Santa Rosa 
Creek* 2002 480 145,894          34,650 111,244            6538 162,356               212,927                  212,927                  
Acct 1436D Total (Depreciable) 145,894          34,650 111,244            162,356               212,927                  212,927                  
*Project completed approx. Sept., 2002, but not capitalized until FYE 6/30/07.  Accumulated depreciation of $12,766 is Prior Period Adjustment

Original Treat/Plant 1974 480 243,519          228,554 14,965               2020 70,692                 1,150,326               1,150,326               
Assm't Dist #2 1981 480 318,507          250,828 67,679               3535 182,685               859,744                  859,744                  
New Plant 1981 480 4,293,392       3,345,270 948,122            3535 2,559,259            11,589,122             11,589,122             
Addl Costs- New Plant 1981 480 10,316            8,043 2,273                 3535 6,134                   27,846                    
Lift Station WP 11-13* 1982 480 44,258            40,250 4,008                 3825 9,998                   110,408                  110,408                  

Acct 1440 Total 4,909,992       3,872,945 1,037,047         2,828,769            13,737,445             13,709,599             
*Error apparently made in depreciation accrual prior to FY02/03, excess depreciation taken.  Depreciation adjusted from FY 11/12 on.

ENR-Adjusted Cost

109



Table A-2
Cambria Community Services District
Wastewater System Fixed Assets ENR-CCI 20-Cities, June 2013: 9542

Acquisition Life Original Accumulated Depreciated Original
Wastewater Fixed Assets Year (mos) Cost Depreciation Net Book Value ENR Net Bk Value Acq. Cost Basis Excl <$50,000

ENR-Adjusted Cost

W/W Treatment Pl Upg 94 1994 360 5,498,434       3,115,778 2,382,656         5408 4,204,014            9,701,564               9,701,564               
Acct 1442 Total 5,498,434       3,115,778 2,382,656         4,204,014            9,701,564               9,701,564               

Vehicle Storage/Office Bldg 1992 300 188,659          149,036 39,623               4985 75,844                 361,120                  361,120                  
Various 1972 120 7,751              7,751 -                     1753 -                       42,191                    
Various 1979 120 6,776              6,776 -                     3003 -                       21,531                    
Various per WP H-14 1981 120 18,724            18,724 -                     3535 -                       50,542                    50,542                    
Equipment 1982 120 10,413            10,413 -                     3825 -                       25,977                    
Building Steel 1983 180 18,248            18,248 -                     4066 -                       42,824                    
Bonomi Ranch Well-SS Cr 1990 120 12,550            12,550 -                     4732 -                       25,307                    
Yard Sealcoat 1999 120 7,533              7,533 (0)                       6059 (0)                         11,863                    
Various 1999 120 43,949            43,949 (0)                       6059 (1)                         69,213                    69,213                    
Aeration Tank Meters 1999 120 12,587            12,587 0                        6059 0                          19,823                    

Acct 1460 Total 327,190          287,568 39,622               75,843                 670,390                  480,875                  

Computer Prog & Printer 1983 60 8,745              8,745 -                     4066 -                       20,522                    
Equipment 1984 60 10,521            10,521 -                     4146 -                       24,213                    
MD 118 Hydroconstant 1986 84 5,606              5,606 -                     4295 -                       12,454                    
MPGB Hydroconstant 1986 84 7,934              7,934 -                     4295 -                       17,627                    
Multi-Quip Pump 1987 84 5,092              5,092 -                     4406 -                       11,028                    
ULD 256,394          256,394 -                     
 Hydraulic Pump 1999 60 31,501            31,501 (0)                       6059 (0)                         49,610                    

-                     
Vehicle Hoist 1999 60 5,813              5,813 -                     6059 -                       9,155                      

-                     
John Deere Tractor/Boom Mow 1999 60 76,887            76,887 -                     6059 -                       121,085                  121,085                  

-                     
Portable Generator* 1999 180 37,814            23,698 14,116               6059 22,230                 59,551                    59,551                    
Non-Potable P7P well 2004 60 2,637              2,637 (0)                       7115 (0)                         3,536                      
 P7P Pump & Components 2005 60 6,115              6,115 -                     7446 -                       7,836                      
A-1 Generator 2012 180 32,603            725 31,878               9070 33,537                 34,300                    
Emergency Generator 2008 60 24,716            19,361 5,355                 8310 6,149                   28,380                    
Camera, Self-Leveling, Color 2009 60 7,364              2,209 5,155                 8570 5,739                   8,199                      

Acct 1470 Total 519,742          463,238 56,504               67,656                 407,497                  180,637                  
*Appears depreciation from purchase date (11/3/99) to 6/30/04 was omitted.  Depreciation adjusted from FY 11/12 on.

 Office Equipment-Phone Sys 1999 60 9,182              9,182 -                     6059 -                       14,460                    
Acct 1471 Total 9,182              9,182 -                     -                       14,460                    -                          

Vehicles (94/95 Adj) 1995 60 245,176          245,176 -                     5471 -                       427,613                  427,613                  
Vehicles (95/96 Adj) 1996 60 5,294              5,294 -                     5620 -                       8,988                      
Vehicles (96/97 Adj) 1997 60 23,489            23,489 -                     5826 -                       38,471                    
Ford F-350 PickUp 2003 60 39,229            39,229 0                        6694 0                          55,919                    55,919                    
Dump Trailer* 2009 60 14,224            5,872 8,352                 8570 9,299                   15,837                    
2005 Ford F150 PickUp 2005 60 19,198            19,198 -                     7446 -                       24,602                    

Acct 1472 Total 346,610          338,258 8,352                 9,299                   571,431                  483,532                  
*Depreciation under-reported FFY 09/10 & 10/11.  Depreciation adjusted from FY 11/12 on.

T-I Line*(Put in service FY 07/08) 2006 240 -                  0 -                     7751 -                       -                          
T-I Line-Abandoned 2010 0 -                  0 -                     8799 -                       -                          
Computer Equipment (96/97) 1997 60 8,296              8,296 -                     5826 -                       13,587                    
Computer Equip 1999 60 9,508              9,508 -                     6059 -                       14,974                    
Gateway Computers - 7 2003 60 19,834            19,834 -                     6694 -                       28,272                    

Acct 1473 Total 37,638            37,638 -                     -                       56,834                    -                          
*Capitalized even though under $5,000 due to project costs being approx. $25,000

Sterilizer Lab 2002 60 6,623              6,623 0                        6538 1                          9,666                      
Spectrophotometer 2002 60 9,690              9,690 -                     6538 -                       14,142                    

Acct 1478 Total 16,313            16,313 0                        1                          23,808                    -                          

Total Wastewater 25,880,124     17,620,213         8,259,911         16,360,084          61,534,830             60,829,386             

110



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

111



 

 

California Government Code 
Key Sections Pertaining to Water & Sewer Capacity Charges 

 
Government Code Sections 66013, 66016, & 66022 

 
66013 

 (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, when a local agency imposes fees for 

water connections or sewer connections, or imposes capacity charges, those fees or 

charges shall not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for 

which the fee or charge is imposed, unless a question regarding the amount of the fee 

or charge imposed in excess of the estimated reasonable cost of providing the services 

or materials is submitted to, and approved by, a popular vote of two‐thirds of those 

electors voting on the issue. 

(b) As used in this section: 

(1) “Sewer connection” means the connection of a structure or project to a public 

sewer system. 

(2) “Water connection” means the connection of a structure or project to a public 

water system, as defined in subdivision (f) of Section 116275 of the Health and 

Safety Code. 

(3) “Capacity charge” means a charge for public facilities in existence at the time a 

charge is imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed 

in the future that are of proportional benefit to the person or property being 

charged, including supply or capacity contracts for rights or entitlements, real 

property interests, and entitlements and other rights of the local agency involving 

capital expense relating to its use of existing or new public facilities. A “capacity 

charge” does not include a commodity charge. 

(4) “Local agency” means a local agency as defined in Section 66000. 

(5) “Fee” means a fee for the physical facilities necessary to make a water 

connection or sewer connection, including, but not limited to, meters, meter 

boxes, and pipelines from the structure or project to a water distribution line or 

sewer main, and that does not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of labor and 

materials for installation of those facilities. 

(6) “Public facilities” means public facilities as defined in Section 66000. 

112



 

 

(c) A local agency receiving payment of a charge as specified in paragraph (3) of 

subdivision (b) shall deposit it in a separate capital facilities fund with other charges 

received, and account for the charges in a manner to avoid any commingling with 

other moneys of the local agency, except for investments, and shall expend those 

charges solely for the purposes for which the charges were collected. Any interest 

income earned from the investment of moneys in the capital facilities fund shall be 

deposited in that fund. 

(d) For a fund established pursuant to subdivision (c), a local agency shall make 

available to the public, within 180 days after the last day of each fiscal year, the 

following information for that fiscal year: 

(1) A description of the charges deposited in the fund. 

(2) The beginning and ending balance of the fund and the interest earned from 

investment of moneys in the fund. 

(3) The amount of charges collected in that fiscal year. 

(4) An identification of all of the following: 

(A) Each public improvement on which charges were expended and the amount 

of the expenditure for each improvement, including the percentage of the total 

cost of the public improvement that was funded with those charges if more 

than one source of funding was used. 

(B) Each public improvement on which charges were expended that was 

completed during that fiscal year. 

(C) Each public improvement that is anticipated to be undertaken in the 

following fiscal year. 

(5) A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the capital facilities 

fund. The information provided, in the case of an interfund transfer, shall identify 

the public improvements on which the transferred moneys are, or will be, 

expended. The information, in the case of an interfund loan, shall include the date 

on which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the fund will receive 

on the loan. 

(e) The information required pursuant to subdivision (d) may be included in the local 

agency’s annual financial report. 

(f) The provisions of subdivisions (c) and (d) shall not apply to any of the following: 

113



 

 

(1) Moneys received to construct public facilities pursuant to a contract between a 

local agency and a person or entity, including, but not limited to, a reimbursement 

agreement pursuant to Section 66003. 

(2) Charges that are used to pay existing debt service or which are subject to a 

contract with a trustee for bondholders that requires a different accounting of the 

charges, or charges that are used to reimburse the local agency or to reimburse a 

person or entity who advanced funds under a reimbursement agreement or 

contract for facilities in existence at the time the charges are collected. 

(3) Charges collected on or before December 31, 1998. 

(g) Any judicial action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul the 

ordinance, resolution, or motion imposing a fee or capacity charge subject to this 

section shall be brought pursuant to Section 66022. 

(h) Fees and charges subject to this section are not subject to the provisions of Chapter 

5 (commencing with Section 66000), but are subject to the provisions of Sections 

66016, 66022, and 66023. 

(i) The provisions of subdivisions (c) and (d) shall only apply to capacity charges levied 

pursuant to this section. 

(Amended by Stats. 2007, Ch. 94, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 2008.) 
 

66016 

(a) Prior to levying a new fee or service charge, or prior to approving an increase in an 

existing fee or service charge, a local agency shall hold at least one open and public 

meeting, at which oral or written presentations can be made, as part of a regularly 

scheduled meeting. Notice of the time and place of the meeting, including a general 

explanation of the matter to be considered, and a statement that the data required by 

this section is available, shall be mailed at least 14 days prior to the meeting to any 

interested party who files a written request with the local agency for mailed notice of 

the meeting on new or increased fees or service charges. Any written request for 

mailed notices shall be valid for one year from the date on which it is filed unless a 

renewal request is filed. Renewal requests for mailed notices shall be filed on or 

before April 1 of each year. The legislative body may establish a reasonable annual 

charge for sending notices based on the estimated cost of providing the service. At 

least 10 days prior to the meeting, the local agency shall make available to the public 

data indicating the amount of cost, or estimated cost, required to provide the service 

114



 

 

for which the fee or service charge is levied and the revenue sources anticipated to 

provide the service, including General Fund revenues. Unless there has been voter 

approval, as prescribed by Section 66013 or 66014, no local agency shall levy a new fee 

or service charge or increase an existing fee or service charge to an amount which 

exceeds the estimated amount required to provide the service for which the fee or 

service charge is levied. If, however, the fees or service charges create revenues in 

excess of actual cost, those revenues shall be used to reduce the fee or service charge 

creating the excess. 

(b) Any action by a local agency to levy a new fee or service charge or to approve an 

increase in an existing fee or service charge shall be taken only by ordinance or 

resolution. The legislative body of a local agency shall not delegate the authority to 

adopt a new fee or service charge, or to increase a fee or service charge. 

(c) Any costs incurred by a local agency in conducting the meeting or meetings 

required pursuant to subdivision (a) may be recovered from fees charged for the 

services which were the subject of the meeting. 

(d) This section shall apply only to fees and charges as described in Sections 51287, 

56383, 65104, 65456, 65584.1, 65863.7, 65909.5, 66013, 66014, and 66451.2 of this 

code, Sections 17951, 19132.3, and 19852 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 

41901 of the Public Resources Code, and Section 21671.5 of the Public Utilities Code. 

(e) Any judicial action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul the 

ordinance, resolution, or motion levying a fee or service charge subject to this section 

shall be brought pursuant to Section 66022. 

(Amended by Stats. 2006, Ch. 643, Sec. 19. Effective January 1, 2007.) 
 

66022   

(a) Any judicial action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul an 

ordinance, resolution, or motion adopting a new fee or service charge, or modifying or 

amending an existing fee or service charge, adopted by a local agency, as defined in 

Section 66000, shall be commenced within 120 days of the effective date of the 

ordinance, resolution, or motion. 

If an ordinance, resolution, or motion provides for an automatic adjustment in a fee or 

service charge, and the automatic adjustment results in an increase in the amount of a 

fee or service charge, any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or 

115



 

 

annul the increase shall be commenced within 120 days of the effective date of the 

increase. 

(b)Any action by a local agency or interested person under this section shall be 

brought pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 860) of Title 10 of Part 2 of 

the Code of Civil Procedure. 

(c) This section shall apply only to fees, capacity charges, and service charges described 

in and subject to Sections 66013, 66014, and 66016. 

(Amended by Stats. 2006, Ch. 643, Sec. 20. Effective January 1, 2007.) 

 

 
 

116



   
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.A. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  David Hirsch, Assistant District Counsel 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: August 22, 2013  Subject: Consideration of Adoption of  
         Ordinance 03-2013 Amending 
         the CCSD Municipal Code to  
         Implement the Interim Issuance  
         of Intent to Serve Letters and the  
         Revised Water Conservation and 
         Retrofit Program and Directing  
         the District Clerk to File a Notice  
         of Exemption  and Adoption of  
         Resolution 36-2013 Establishing  
         Retrofit In-Lieu Fees  
   
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors waive further reading, read by title only and 
adopt Ordinance 03-2013 amending Chapters 4.16, 4.20 and 8.04 of the CCSD Municipal 
Code relating to Water Conservation Devices, the Water Conservation and Retrofit Program, 
and Water and Sewer Allocations. In addition, it is recommended that the Board adopt 
Resolution 36-2013 establishing retrofit in-lieu fees. The Municipal Code changes will 
implement the Water Use Efficiency Plan, the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters and 
revise the CCSD’s Water Conservation and Retrofit Program. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
New development will be required to fund the demand offset water-use efficiency measures 
being completed as part of the District’s adopted comprehensive Water Conservation and 
Retrofit Program, or to take the lead in completing conservation measures within the District’s 
water service area. Under the option of paying retrofit in-lieu fees, a project will have to pay 
$50 per point for fees from the Points Bank. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the July 25, 2013 meeting, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 19-2013 and 
introduced Ordinance 03-1013. These actions were related to implementation of the previously 
approved Water Use Efficiency Plan and Resolution 09-2013, which approved the issuance of 
intent to serve letters on an interim basis while the District continues to pursue a long-term 
supplemental water supply project (“Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters”). Resolution 
19-2013 adopted an Administrative Policy, lists of Acceptable and Prohibited Water Savings 
Plumbing and Fixtures, and a Retrofit Points Equivalency Table related to the implementation 
of the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters.   

117



 
 

2

 
Ordinance 03-2013 will amend a number of provisions in the CCSD Municipal Code.  Chapter 
4.20 contains the District’s Water Conservation and Retrofit Program. The proposed 
amendment are designed to implement the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters, and 
includes express language regarding the process for determining the number of “points” 
required by a project to offset water use, as well as the District’s Points Bank and retrofit in-lieu 
fee process. Revisions to Chapter 4.16 relating to Water Conservation Devices have been 
prepared, including provisions regarding prohibited and acceptable water devices and fixtures.  
Chapter 4.16 also includes prohibitions and penalties.  The prohibitions have been revised to 
make it clear that failure to install required plumbing fixtures, or removal after installation, is a 
Code violation and constitutes a misdemeanor. In addition, provisions are included that allow 
for recordation of notices against properties in violation. 
 
Chapter 8.04 of the CCSD Municipal Code, which addresses allocations of Intent to Serve 
Letters, is also being amended.  The amendments will expressly provide for the Board to 
determine how many Intent to Serve Letters are to be issued.  It also provides for Board 
approval of an administrative policy containing the process for determining the number of 
Intent to Serve Letters, as well as procedures for polling the Wait List to determine which 
positions are ready to move forward with projects.  It also will provide that the time that Intent 
to Serve Letters are valid will be tolled during any period that there are no allocations under the 
County’s Growth Management Ordinance. 
 
Resolution 36-2013 is also being presented to the Board for adoption.  Since its adoption in 
2003, Section 4.20.030(A)(2) of the CCSD Municipal Code has provided for a retrofit in-lieu fee 
of fifty dollars ($50) per point. Ordinance 03-2013 includes a revision to Section 4.20.030(A)(2) 
to provide that the retrofit in-lieu fees are to be established by the Board of Directors by 
resolution based upon a determination of the cost to implement programs and projects that will 
reduce existing water use within the CCSD’s service area in an amount equal to or greater 
than the anticipated water use of projects being issued intent to serve letters.  As the Board is 
aware, the current budget contains the amount of $362,000 for the Resource Conservation 
Department.  This will provide for the implementation of the CCSD’s conservation program, 
including recommendations that are contained in the Water Use Efficiently Plan prepared by 
Maddaus Water Management.  Staff believes that it would be appropriate and desirable to, at a 
minimum, maintain the retrofit in-lieu fees at fifty dollars ($50) per point at this time, based 
upon the CCSD’s budget for its conservation program, subject to further review and analysis 
for additional increases to achieve the funding needed to provide for the reduction in existing 
water use. 
 
Ordinance 03-2013 and Resolution 19-2013 are intended to provide for the CCSD’s revised 
Water Conservation Program, and have been presented for adoption pursuant to the statutory 
authority contained in Sections 375 through 377 and Section 1009 of the California Water 
Code.  Those statutes require publication of the regulations and holding a pubic hearing.  After 
compliance with those statutory procedures, violations of the requirements of a duly adopted 
water conservation programs are punishable as a misdemeanor.   Water Code Section 377 
contains specific penalties for such violations, which are referenced in revised CCSD Municipal 
Code Section 4.16.110.   
 
Adoption of amendments to the CCSD’s existing Water Conservation Program, and 
procedures and related administrative activities to implement the issuance of Intent to Serve 
Letters on an interim basis, will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the 

118



 
 

3

environment and are exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(5)) 
and Class 3 Categorical Exemption to CEQA under Title 22 C.C.R. Section 60101(c)..  Also, 
approval of individual utility service connections are exempt under Section 15268(b)(4). 
Additionally, amending the CCSD’s existing Water Conservation and Retrofit Program and 
providing for the interim issuance of Intent to Serve Letters is not subject to CEQA review 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), and also Section 15378(b)(2), general 
policy and procedure making, in that the Board is providing direction to create policies and 
procedures to implement the CCSD’s Water Conservation and Retrofit Program, as well as 
Cambria Communitywide Condition 4.B of the North Coast Area Plan.  Accordingly, Ordinance 
03-2013 provides that the District Clerk is to file an appropriate notice of exemption.   
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

119



 

pg. 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 03-2013 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

DATED: August 22, 2013 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 4.16, 4.20 AND 8.04 OFTHE CCSD 
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO WATER CONSERVATION DEVICES, THE WATER 

CONSERVATION AND RETROFIT PROGRAM, AND WATER AND SEWER 
ALLOCATION IN ORDER TO AMEND THE WATER CONSERVATION AND 

RETROFIT PROGRAM AND IMPLEMENT THE WATER USE EFFICIENCY PLAN AND 
THE INTERIM ISSUANCE OF INTENT TO SERVE LETTERS  

 
WHEREAS, On February 28, 2013 the Board of Directors approved a Water Use 
Efficiency Plan (“WUEP”) which will further the CCSD’s Urban Water Management Plan 
goal of significantly reducing per capita water use and on March 21, 2013 the Board 
adopted Resolution 09-2013 approving the issuance of intent to serve letters on an 
interim basis (“Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters”), while the District continues 
to pursue a long-term supplemental water supply project; and  
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 09-2013 directed the CCSD Staff to implement the WUEP and 
the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters through the development of 
administrative procedures and other necessary actions; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 18, 2003 the Board of Directors adopted Ordinance 09-2003 
in accordance with the procedures and requirements of Water Code Section 375, et 
seq., and the authority in Water Code Section 1009, regarding the CCSD’s Water 
Conservation and Retrofit Program, which Program is codified in CCSD Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.20; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to implement the WUEP and the Interim Issuance of Intent to 
Serve Letters it has been determined that amendments to CCSD Municipal Code,  
including revisions to Chapter 4.16 Water Conservation Devices and Chapter 4.20 
Water Conservation and Retrofit Program, and Chapter 8.04 Water and Sewer 
Allocation are appropriate; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance, along with Resolution 19-2013 adopting an Administrative 
Policy to administer the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters, lists of  Acceptable 
and Prohibited Water Saving Plumbing and Fixtures, and the Retrofit Points 
Equivalency Table, is intended to provide for the CCSD’s revised Water Conservation 
Program, and is adopted pursuant to the statutory authority granted in Sections 375 
through 377 and Section 1009 of the California Water Code, and the Board of Directors 
has adopted this Water Conservation Program after having held a public hearing in 
compliance with the requirements of Water Code Section 375(a); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that the adoption of amendments to the 
CCSD’s existing Water Conservation Program, and procedures and related 
administrative activities to implement the issuance of Intent to Serve Letters on an 

120



 

pg. 2 
 

interim basis, will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment and 
are exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(5) and Class 3 
Categorical Exemption to CEQA under Title 22 C.C.R. Section 60101(c).  Also, approval 
of individual utility service connections are exempt under Section 15268(b)(4). 
Additionally, the Board of Directors finds that amending the CCSD’s existing Water 
Conservation and Retrofit Program and providing for the interim issuance of Intent to 
Serve Letters is not subject to CEQA review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15061(b)(3), and also Section 15378(b)(2), general policy and procedure making, in that 
the Board is providing direction to create policies and procedures to implement the 
existing Water Conservation and Retrofit Program, as well as Cambria Communitywide 
Condition 4.B of the North Coast Area Plan, which will be implemented in a manner 
consistent with and significantly less than the number of dwelling units that could be 
allowed under the San Luis Obispo County Growth Management Ordinance limits and 
further will be controlled by the amount of actual water conservation achieved within the 
District’s service area.  The District Clerk is directed to file an appropriate notice of 
exemption.   
 
The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) ordains as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  Findings 
 

A. The findings contained in Ordinance No. 09-2003, a copy of which is attached 
hereto, regarding the CCSD’s Water Conservation and Retrofit Program are 
hereby readopted and incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth.  
  

B. The findings in Ordinance 09-2003 included findings regarding the CCSD’s water 
supply, Order WR 89-19 of the State Water Resources Control Board regarding 
Santa Rosa Creek, Order WR 88-22 of the State Water Resources Control Board 
regarding San Simeon Creek, and findings regarding the general welfare 
requiring that the water resources of the District be put to beneficial use to the 
fullest extent capable and conservation of such water is being exercised in the 
interests of the District’s residents , as well as consistent with Article X, Section 2 
of the California Constitution regarding the State’s policy of water conservation 
and the prohibition of waste.   
 

C. The findings in Ordinance 09-2003 also determined that specific rules, 
regulations and restrictions established in the CCSD’s Water Conservation and 
Retrofit Program are necessary to conserve and supplement the District water 
supplies for the greatest public benefit, with particular regard to domestic use, 
sanitation and fire protection and that new water users must be regulated 
accordingly to ensure that demand does not exceed supply and that the use of 
water is reasonable and orderly, with a program goal to offset the expected 
number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU’s) of water to be used by each new or 
remodeled structure, with in-lieu fee provisions established to allow for the 
collection of funds to accomplish the water savings by direct water conservation 
activities performed by the District. 
 

121



 

pg. 3 
 

D. The Board of Directors further finds, that the adoption of revisions to the CCSD’s 
water conservation program, and provision for its enforcement, as provided by 
this Ordinance and Resolution 19-2013, are necessary and appropriate to reduce 
the quantity of water used by persons in the District for the purpose of conserving 
the water supplies of the District, and that  the direction in Resolution 09-2013 
providing for the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters is consistent with the 
existing provisions of Ordinance 09-2003, as codified in Chapter 4.20 of the 
CCSD Municipal Code, as well as the District’s duties and obligations as the 
community’s water purveyor, and that providing for the interim issuance of Intent 
to Serve Letters  based upon the water savings that will be achieved through the 
Water Use Efficiency Plan, while the District continues its efforts to develop a 
major public works project to provide a long-term supplemental water supply,  
constitutes utilization of the water supply in a manner that will provide the 
greatest public benefit with particular regard to domestic use, sanitation and fire 
protection. 

   
Section 2.   Subsection B of Section 8.04.040 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“B.     Positions which are active service commitments, non-active service 
commitments, or parks/landscape/irrigation commitments are designated 
based on current meter designation, or if no current meter designation, 
then the most recent historical meter designation. Attached to the 
ordinance codified in this chapter and made a part hereof by reference is 
Exhibit D titled designation of positions. Exhibit D identifies the designation 
of position held by each parcel (identified by county assessor parcel 
number unless otherwise specifically identified in Exhibit D), which holds a 
position, which is an active service commitment, non-active service 
commitment, or parks/landscape/irrigation commitment. Water use is 
restricted to that designated on Exhibit D and to new customers who have 
been permitted to connect to the water system as new commitments 
authorized by the Board of Directors.   The Table of Existing Commitments 
shall be updated to reflect such new commitments.” 

 
Section 3.   Subsection C of Section 8.04.080 of the CCSD Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 

C.     In order to implement the district’s program to issue intent to serve letters 
on an interim basis while the district continues to pursue a long-term 
supplemental water supply project, during each allocation year the board of 
directors shall make a determination regarding how many intent to serve letters 
are to be made available for issuance.  The process for determining the number 
of intent to serve letters that will be made available shall be set forth in an 
administrative policy approved by the board. 
 

122



 

pg. 4 
 

Prior to each allocation year in which intent to serve letters will be issued, the 
district shall conduct a poll of waiting list applications, in priority order, to 
determine which positions are willing and able to move forward on their building 
projects.   Subject to approval by the board, the general manager shall establish 
administrative procedures for making such inquiries.  This "inquiry" shall notify 
each eligible applicant of the requirements, which must be met upon acceptance 
of an intent to serve.  

1.     Deferral Policy. Based upon the number of years in which the Water 
Code Section 350 declaration of water shortage emergency has been in 
existence and restrictions and regulations have limited new connections to 
the water system,  eEffective with the date of the ordinance codified 
amending in this chapter, each waiting list position, regardless of changes 
in ownership, is is allowed one to deferral  acceptance of an intent to 
serve letter (choosing to remain on the waiting list when offered an intent 
to serve), without losing their position. Failure to respond to the inquiry in a 
timely manner shall constitute a deferral.  

a.     Variances may be allowed for deferral upon the following 
conditions: applicant provides proof of exceptional unanticipated 
circumstances which may include but not be limited to: recent 
serious illness or injury, death in immediate family, divorce, loss of 
employment. If circumstances meet the conditions, the board of 
directors may allow one non-penalty deferral in addition to that 
allowed in paragraph (C)(1) of this section.  
b.     Deferrals subsequent to those discussed in paragraphs (C)(1) 
and (C)(1)(a) of this section shall cause the position to move to the 
end of the waiting list.  

Section 4.  Subsection E 2 of Section 8.04.080 of the CCSD Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

2.  Subject to the limitations otherwise specified in this chapter, intent to serve 
letters shall remain valid for eighteen (18) months from the date of issuance. 
Multifamily and commercial projects receiving an intent to serve letter for less 
than their entire project in any one year shall have their intent to serve letter 
automatically extended to the date of the expiration of their last allocation for the 
project provided they accept the maximum number of EDUs available to the 
project each year. For those commercial and multifamily projects with permanent 
structures already existing, the EDUs shall be assigned to the parcel upon 
compliance with this chapter.   The time limits contained herein shall be tolled 
during any period that there are no allocations under the County of San Luis 
Obispo Growth Management Ordinance. 

 
 

123



 

pg. 5 
 

Section 5. Chapter 4.16 is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety as set forth in 
Exhibit A, which exhibit is hereby incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 6. Chapter 4.20 is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety as set forth in 
Exhibit B, which exhibit is hereby incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 7.   If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, or clause of 
this Ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unlawful, such decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance or any part thereof.  The 
Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, 
subdivision, paragraph, sentence, or clause thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, or clause be declared 
unconstitutional. 
 
Section 8.   In accordance with Water Code Section 376, a summary prepared by 
District Counsel, was published and a certified copy of the full text of the proposed 
resolution were posted in the office of the Cambria Community Services District at least 
five days prior to the Board of Directors meeting at which this resolution was to be 
adopted.   The District Clerk is hereby directed within 15 days after adoption of this 
resolution, to publish such summary, along with the names of those members voting for 
and it, and post a certified copy of the full text of the adopted resolution, along with the 
names of those Board members voting for and against the resolution in the Cambria 
Community Services District office. 
 
Section 9.   In accordance with the provisions in Water Code Section 376, this 
Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
The foregoing Ordinance amendment was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of 

Directors of the Cambria Community Services District held on the 22nd day of August 

2013. 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
             
       Michael Thompson 
       President, Board of Directors 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
        
Kathy A. Choate     Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk      District Counsel 
 
 

124



Page 1 of 12 
 

EXHIBIT A  

ORDINANCE 03XX-2013 

 

Chapter 4.16 - WATER CONSERVATION DEVICES 

Sections:  

4.16.010 - Purpose. 

4.16.020 - Definitions. 

4.16.030 - Plumbing fixtures for new construction. 

4.16.040 -– Reserved. trofit of existing hotels and motels. 

4.16.050 - Requirements upon change of ownership or use. 

4.16.060 - Retrofit upon expansion of use. 

4.16.070 - Retrofit upon resale. 

4.16.080 - Failure to install and prohibition on removal after installation--
Recordation of notice. 

4.16.090 - Discretionary exemptions. 

4.16.100 - Appeals. 

4.16.110 - Failure to install and prohibition on removal after installation-- Penalties. 

4.16.120 - Enforcement. 

4.16.130 - Civil nuisance. 

4.16.140 - Cost of enforcement. 

4.16.150 - Remedies cumulative. 

4.16.160 - Conflicting provisionsGeneral notes. 

Appendix 4.16A - ACCEPTABLE WATER SAVING PLUMBING AND FIXTURES 

Appendix 4.16B - PROHIBITED DEVICES AND FIXTURES THAT CAUSE THE 
EXCESSIVE USE OF WATER 

 
 

4.16.010 - Purpose. 

It is the purpose and intent of this chapter to reduce the use of potable 
water within the Cambria Community Services District boundaries through the 
installation of water saving devices and plumbing, and through the prohibition of 
other devices and fixtures which cause the excessive use of water.  It is also the 
purpose and intent of this chapter, in conjunction with the provisions of chapter 
4.20 of this Code, to facilitate the policies of the board of directors to issue intent 

125



Page 2 of 12 
 

to serve letters on an interim basis while the District continues to pursue a long-
term supplemental water supply project, based upon implementation of the 
District’s approved Water Use Efficiency Plan through water demand offsets. 

(Ord. 3-88 § I)  

 

4.16.020 - Definitions. 

The definitions contained in Chapter 4.04 shall be used for interpreting this 
chapter. The following definitions are applications to this chapter.  

"Change of ownerships" means a transfer of a present interest in real 
property, and a transfer of the right to beneficial use thereof, the value of which is 
substantially equal to the proportion of the ownership interest transferred, which 
transfer is the result of a contract of sale or similar instrument and for which 
escrow is opened or a contract of sale has been executed. Except for transfers of 
title from one spouse to another,  eEvery transfer of property shall qualify as a 
"change of ownership," except transfers of title from one spouse to another, 
whether the transfer is voluntary, involuntary, by operation of law, by grant, gift, 
devise, inheritance, trust, contract of sale, addition or deletion of an owner, 
property settlement, or any other means. "Change of ownership" affected other 
than by a contract of sale shall be deemed to occur at the time of actual transfer 
of title. A change of ownership resulting from a contract of sale or similar 
instrument shall be so regarded only if escrow is opened or a contract of sale is 
executed, whichever occurs last, on or after the effective date of this chapter.  

"Change of use" means, in the case of commercial, industrial or public 
authority structures, a change in the use to which the structure was previously 
devoted, to a substantially different use.  

"Commercial" or "commercial building" means any use, structure, or 
project not defined as "residential" or "residential building."  

"High-efficiency Low water-use plumbing and plumbing fixtures" means 
the particular requirements and standards of this chapter are those set forth in 
the approved list of Acceptable Water Savings Plumbing and Fixtures (the 
“Acceptable Water Savings Plumbing and Fixtures List”), which shall be 
maintained by the District and approved by the board of directors by resolution.   
Appendix 4.16A. The board may, from time to time, by resolution, modify, add to, 
or remove from, the standards and restrictions therein.  

"New construction" means any construction of a previously non-existent 
structure requiring a discretionary or ministerial permit issued after the effective 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

126



Page 3 of 12 
 

date of this chapter that includes the installation of plumbing fixtures. "New 
construction" shall include additions, modifications, or structural improvements, 
which add square footage to floor space of existing structures and includes the 
installation of plumbing fixtures.  

"Prohibited devices and fixtures" means the devices and fixtures set forth 
in the approved list of Prohibited Devices and Fixtures that Cause the Excessive 
Use of Water  (the “Prohibited Water Devices and Fixtures List”), which shall be 
maintained by the District and approved by the board of directors by resolution.   
Appendix 4.16B. The board may, from time to time, by resolution, modify, add to, 
or remove from, the standards and restrictions therein.  

"Residential" or "residential building" means any use or structure built and 
intended primarily for the shelter, or housing of any person.  

(Amended during 2004 codification; Ord. 3-88 § II)  

4.16.030 - Plumbing fixtures for new construction. 

All new construction, as defined herein, shall be exclusively equipped with 
high-efficiency low water-use plumbing and plumbing fixtures as defined by this 
chapter, and no prohibited devices or fixtures as defined in the approved 
Prohibited Water Devices and Fixtures List Appendix 4.16B shall be permitted. 
These high-efficiency low water-use fixtures shall be installed and maintained, 
and shall not be replaced with fixtures which allow greater water use. When the 
district installs any new water service  meter, the meter shall be set with a flow 
restriction device installed and the flow restriction device shall not be removed 
until such time as the customer shows to the district compliance with the 
requirements of this chapter by means of one of the following methods:  

A. 

A.       A copy of the plumbing permit obtained in relation to fixture 
installation which shows compliance with this chapter shall be 
forwarded to the district;  

B. 

B. A copy of the pest control inspection report, energy audit 
report, or other appropriate report (the general manager shall 
maintain a list of individuals qualified to provide this certification, 
which certifies exclusive installation of l high-efficiency  ow water-
use fixtures shall be forwarded to the district;  

C. 

127



Page 4 of 12 
 

C.  A copy of the building inspection report by the county 
building official which indicates exclusive installation of high-
efficiency low water-use fixtures shall be forwarded to the district; or  

D. 

D. Statement of exclusive compliance with this chapter, 
together with a dated copy of the purchase receipt for each high-
efficiency low water-use fixture, and a copy of the labor contract, or 
statement of self installation, which evidences complete installation, 
shall be forwarded to the district, and a written agreement by the 
property owner/purchaser allowing inspection of property by district 
staff or authorized agent.  

(Ord. 3-88 § III)  

4.16.040 -– Reserved.etrofit of existing hotels and motels. 

All existing hotels, motels, recreational vehicle parks, and campgrounds 
within ninety (90) days following the effective date of this chapter, shall retrofit all 
plumbing fixtures which are installed, but which do not meet low water-use 
plumbing fixture standards, with showers and shower heads as described in 
Category No. 4 of Appendix 4.16A, toilet water-use reduction devices capable of 
reducing flow by at least one gallon per flush, and bathroom washbasin faucets 
with aerators which limit the flow rate to a maximum of eight liters (two gallons) 
per minute. The general manager shall defer the retrofit requirement of this 
section for any plumbing fixture for which present technology is not available to 
cause the required flow reduction, such as in flushometer-style toilet fixtures, or 
where retrofitting is not otherwise feasible.  

(Ord. 3-88 § IV)  

4.16.050 - Requirements upon change of ownership or use. 

A. 

A. Residential.  All existing residential buildings shall, at the time of 
change of ownership, be retrofitted, if not already so, exclusively with high-
efficiency low water-use plumbing fixtures as defined by this chapter. 
Theses fixtures shall be installed and maintained, and shall not be 
replaced with fixtures which allow greater water use.  

B. 

B. Commercial. All existing commercial, industrial, and public authority 
structures shall, at the time of change of ownership or change of use, be 
retrofitted, if not already so, with low high-efficiency water-use plumbing 
fixtures as defined by this chapter. These fixtures shall be installed and 

128



Page 5 of 12 
 

maintained and shall not be replaced with fixtures which allow greater 
water use.  

(Ord. 3-88 § V)  

4.16.060 - Retrofit upon expansion of use. 

All residential, commercial, public authority, and industrial reconstruction, 
remodels or additions that add or change bathroom plumbing fixtures, and/or 
increase floor area by twenty (20) percent or greater of the existing floor area 
shall meet "new construction" low high-efficiency water-use plumbing fixture 
standards for the entire facility, including retrofitting of existing plumbing fixtures 
as identified in Section 4.16.030.  

(Ord. 3-88 § VI)  

4.16.070 - Retrofit upon resale. 

A. 

A. Prior to the close of escrow, the new owner/applicant shall show 
compliance with the retrofit requirements of this chapter by successfully 
meeting the district's inspection.  

B. 

B. Prior to the change of use of any commercial, industrial, or public 
authority buildings, the owner of record shall certify in writing to the 
Cambria Community Services District about such changes of use of the 
structure and compliance with this chapter, including compliance with all 
plumbing fixture retrofitting requirements. No change of use of such 
buildings shall be made prior to submission of such written certification to 
the general manager.  

(Ord. 6-2005 § 1: amended during 2004 codification; Ord. 3-88 § VII)  

4.16.080 -– Failure to install and prohibition on removal after installation--

Recordation of notice—. 

Plumbing fixtures that have been installed as required by this chapter shall 
not be removed after installation, except for replacement with fixtures that are of 
greater efficiency. Whenever the general manager determines that there is an 
existing violation of this chapter based upon a determination that high-efficiency , 
that low water-use plumbing fixtures have not been installed at the time of 
change of ownership or use or have been removed since initial installation, the 
general manager may record a notice of violation with the office of the county 
recorder. The owner(s) of the property, as revealed by the assessment roll, on 
which the violation is situated and any other person responsible for the violation 
shall be notified of the recordation, if their address is known to the general 

129



Page 6 of 12 
 

manager. The general manager shall cause a notice of correction to be recorded 
at such time as the property owner has established full compliance with the 
provisions of this chapter.  

(Ord. 3-88 § VIII)  

4.16.090 - Discretionary exemptions. 

The general manager may, in his or her discretion, exempt projects from 
the provisions of this chapter, or impose reasonable conditions in lieu of 
compliance therewith, if he or she determines that any of the following sections 
apply:  

A. 

A. Hardship. The general manager may grant an exemption for 
hardship where the requirements of this chapter would cause an 
unnecessary and undue substantial hardship upon the owner or 
purchaser of the facility or the public. Substantial hardship may 
include, but is not limited to:  
1. 

1. Plumbing in an existing facility which does not match 
connections with high-efficiency low water-using plumbing 
fixtures and would, therefore, require partial replumbing of 
the structure. For example, different rough-in dimensions.  

2. 

2. Unavailability of high-efficiency low water-using 
plumbing fixtures to match a well-defined historic 
architectural style (i.e., Victorian, Mission Revival) in an 
historic building (pre-1920).  

Any project exempted pursuant to subsection (A)(1) of this section shall be 
required to have installed toilets using a no greater than one maximum of three 
and six-tenths one-half gallons per flush and two gallons per minute shower 
heads, if not already so provided.  

B. 

B. Emergency. The general manager may grant an exemption 
for emergency purposes when the requirements of this chapter 
would create a condition affecting the health, sanitation, fire 
protection or safety of the facility owner or the public. Emergency 
conditions include, but are not limited to, sewer line grades that are 
insufficient to accommodate reduced flows caused by conversion of 

130



Page 7 of 12 
 

water closet(s) to three and one-half gallons per flush as 
determined by the district engineer.  

C. 

C. In Lieu Compliance. The general manager may grant an 
exemption by imposing reasonable conditions in lieu of compliance 
with the requirements of this chapter, where the conditions would 
not allow the quantity of water consumed by the facility to exceed 
the total water demand achieved if the low water-use plumbing 
fixture standards set by this chapter had been used, and would not 
otherwise adversely affect service to any existing water consumer.  

(Ord. 3-88 § IX)  

4.16.100 - Appeals. 

A. 

A. Content of Appeal. An appeal may be made to the board by any 
public agency or person aggrieved by a decision of the general manager 
and engineer pursuant to this chapter. All appeals shall be made to the 
board by filing a written appeal with the district secretary within ten (10) 
working days from the date of the decision. The appellant must specifically 
state in the notice of appeal:  
1. 

1. The identity of the appellant and his or her interest in the 
decision; 

2. 

2. The identity of the decision appealed from and the conditions 
appealed from; 

3. 

3. A clear, complete, but brief statement of the reasons why, in 
the opinion of the appellant, the decision or the conditions imposed 
were unjustified or inappropriate;  

4. 

4. The specific reasons the appellant disagrees with the 
findings of the general manager; 

5. 

5. The specific facts of the matter in sufficient detail to notify 
interested persons of the nature of the proceedings, to place the 
interested persons upon notice as to how any proposed action may 
affect their interest so that they may formulate their defense of 
opposition without being subjected to surprise. The board will not 
accept an appeal stated in generalities, legal or otherwise.  

131



Page 8 of 12 
 

B. 

B. Form. An optional form for giving notice of appeal shall be provided 
by the general manager. The form need not be used if the notice of appeal 
is complete.  

C. 

C. Acceptance of Appeal. An appeal shall not be accepted by the 
board of directors unless it is complete and complies with all requirements. 
The district secretary shall not accept a notice of appeal if it is obvious on 
the face of the notice that it is incomplete.  

D. 

D. Hearing. The board shall set the matter for hearing at a regular 
meeting or special meeting within thirty (30) days from the date the appeal 
is filed, and may in its discretion thereafter affirm, reverse, or modify the 
manager’s  and engineer's decision, and impose any conditions it deems 
just and proper.  

(Ord. 3-88 § X)  

4.16.110 - Failure to install and prohibition on removal after installation-- 

Penalties. 

 Plumbing fixtures that have been installed as required by this chapter shall not 
be removed after installation. Any person, firm, or corporation whether as principal, 
agent, employee, or otherwise who fails to install fixtures as required by this chapter or 
who violates or causes or permits violating or causing or permitting the violation of any 
of the provisions of this chapter; or, any person or contractor who installs or removes 
plumbing fixtures contrary to the provisions of this chapter with the intent to defeat the 
purposes of this chapter, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor in accordance with 
California Water Code Section 377.    As provided in Water Code Section 377, upon 
conviction thereof such person, firm or corporation shall be punished by imprisonment 
in the county jail for not more than 30 days, or by fine not exceeding one thousand 
dollars ($1,000), or by both. punishable as an infraction as provided by Section 
1.12.010. Violations carry a maximum penalty of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for 
each offense. Each separate day or portion thereof during which any violation occurs 
or continues without a good-faith effort by the responsible party to correct the violation, 
shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense, and upon conviction thereof, shall be 
separately punishable.  

 

(Ord. 3-88 § XI)  

4.16.120 - Enforcement. 

The general manager shall be the officer primarily charged with 
enforcement of this chapter. All public employees of the Cambria Community 
Services District who are vested with the duty or authority to issue permits or 
install new water meters, shall conform to the provisions of this chapter and shall 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", First line:  0",
Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single, Tab stops:  0.64", Left +  1.27", Left + 
1.91", Left +  2.54", Left +  3.18", Left + 
3.82", Left +  4.45", Left +  5.09", Left + 
5.73", Left +  6.36", Left +  7", Left +  7.63",
Left +  8.27", Left +  8.91", Left +  9.54", Left
+  10.18", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Border: : (No
border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

132



Page 9 of 12 
 

issue no such permits or install such water meters in conflict with the provisions 
of this chapter, and any such permits issued in conflict with the provisions of this 
chapter, shall be null and void, and any such water meters installed shall be 
removed.  

(Ord. 3-88 § XII)  

4.16.130 - Civil nuisance. 

A. 

A. Any building or structure set up, erected, constructed, altered, 
enlarged, converted, moved, maintained, sold, or the use of which is 
changed, contrary to the provisions of this chapter, and/or any use of land, 
building, or premises, established, conducted operated or maintained 
contrary to the provisions of this chapter, shall be, and the same is 
declared to be a violation of this chapter and a public nuisance.  

B. 

B. The district may summarily abate the public nuisance, and district 
counsel or the district attorney, upon order of the board, may bring civil 
suit or other action, to enjoin or abate the nuisance.  

C. 

C. Each day any violation of this chapter continues shall be regarded 
as a new violation and separate offense. The remedies provided in this 
chapter shall be cumulative and not exclusive.  

D. 

D. Should any person, firm, or corporation violate the terms of this 
chapter, and any action is authorized either by the board, district counsel, 
or district attorney, or is, in fact commenced by the agencies for the 
violation, no other action shall be taken on any application file by or on 
behalf of the person, firm, or corporation until the action has been 
concluded or resolved.  

(Ord. 3-88 § XIII)  

4.16.140 - Cost of enforcement. 

A. 

A. Any person, firm, or corporation who creates or maintains a public 
nuisance in violation of this chapter or upon whose property a notice of 
violation has been recorded, shall be liable for the costs of abatement and 
correction which shall include, but not be limited to:  
1. 

1. Cost of investigation; 
2. 

133



Page 10 of 12 
 

2. Court costs; 
3. 

3. Attorney fees; 
4. 

4. Cost of monitoring compliance. 
B. 

B. Upon a continuation of the public nuisance after notice from the 
district to cease the nuisance, any person, firm, or corporation shall be 
liable for the cost of abatement set forth above, plus a civil penalty of fifty 
(50) percent of these cost payable to the district in addition to any other 
cost of enforcement imposed by the court.  

(Amended during 2004 codification; Ord. 3-88 § XIV)  

4.16.150 - Remedies cumulative. 

The remedies available to the district to enforce this chapter are in 
addition to any other remedies available under the district's ordinances, or any 
other state statutes, and do not replace or supplant any other remedy but are 
cumulative thereto.  

(Ord. 3-88 § XV)  

4.16.160 -– Conflicting provisions.General notes. 

A. 

A. If any other codes or ordinances in effect in the district are in 
conflict with the provisions of this chapter, the more restrictive shall apply.  

B. 

B. In the event any provision of existing ordinances, regulations, or 
procedures of the district conflicts with the provisions of this chapter, the 
provisions of this chapter shall prevail.  

(Ord. 3-88 § XVI)  

Appendix 4.16A -  

ACCEPTABLE WATER SAVING PLUMBING AND FIXTURES 

Piping and water using devices and fixtures acceptable to the district shall 
be comprised of those plumbing and water using devices and fixtures described 
by the following category headings and meeting the standards set forth under 
those headings.  

Category No. 1 - Plumbing System Requirements (New Construction 
Only)  

134



Page 11 of 12 
 

All hot water systems will be of the circulating or two pipe type with forced 
circulation provisions.  

Thermal insulation of a kind typically used to insulate pipes and having a 
thickness of not less than three-fourths of an inch shall be installed on all hot 
water piping except plastic piping with a no heat loss rating factor.  

All hot water pipes located within or under concrete slabs must be 
insulated and contained in chases or conduits.  

Any hot water fixture or outlet located within five feet of the hot water 
heater shall be exempt from the requirements of Category No. 1.  

Category No. 2 - Toilets, Tank Type  

Tank type toilets shall be of a design or equipped with a device that does 
not exceed 1.6 gallons per flush.  

Category No. 3 - Toilets and Urinals, Flushometer Type  

Flushometer type toilets and urinals shall be of a design that does not 
exceed 1.6 gallons per flush. (eg. Sloan model 110-1/Eljer Ultra bowl for toilets, 
Sloan 186 for urinals)  

Category No. 4 - Shower Heads and Showers  

Shower heads shall be of a design that limits the maximum flow to eight 
liters (two gallons) per minute (gpm) at fifty (50) pounds per square inch (psi), 
and shall have a shut-off valve located near the shower head. All showers having 
unsupervised public access shall have automatic shut-off valves which shall limit 
the flow of water to not more than five minutes.  

Category No. 5 - Faucets, Faucet Aerators  

All faucets in residential sinks shall be equipped with faucet aerators and 
shall be of a design that limits the maximum flow to two gallons per minute (2.0 
GPM) at fifty (50) psi. All faucets in residential and commercial lavatories shall be 
equipped with faucet aerators and shall be of a design that limits the maximum 
flow to one-half gallon per minute at fifty (50) psi. Water faucets for uses other 
than residential shall have aerators and shall be of a design that limits the flow to 
a maximum of two and three-fourths gallons per minute (gpm) at fifty (50) psi and 
shall be operated by foot button or pedal valves.  

Category No. 6 - Exterior Hose Bibs  

135



Page 12 of 12 
 

Hose bibs shall be equipped with backflow preventers/vacuum breakers of 
a design that limits the maximum flow of water to four gallons per minute at fifty 
(50) psi.  

Category No. 7 - Water Pressure Regulators  

Pressure regulators rated capacity of at least three hundred (300) psi shall 
be installed and set at fifty (50) psi at all locations served by the district's water 
distribution system.  

Category No. 8 - Bath Tub Capacity  

All new installations of bath tubs and whirlpool spas, specifically units that 
are designed to be drained after each use, shall be of a design that does not 
exceed a maximum capacity of seventy (70) gallons.  

Category No. 9 - Hot Tubs, Spas  

Acceptable spas and hot tubs are tubs of any size that have a water 
recirculation system that filters and chlorinates the water. These units are not 
emptied after each use and are covered when not in use.  

(Amended during 2004 codification; Res. 37-95 Schedule A: Ord. 5-88 
Schedule A)  

Appendix 4.16B -  

PROHIBITED DEVICES AND FIXTURES THAT CAUSE THE EXCESSIVE USE OF 

WATER 

Devices and fixtures which the district has determined to cause the 
excessive use of water shall be comprised of those water using devices and 
fixtures described by the following category headings and the operation and/or 
use of these fixtures and devices is prohibited.  

Category No. 1 - Oversized Bathtubs in Motels  

"Oversized Bathtubs" are tubs that are greater than seventy (70) gallons 
capacity.  

Any existing "Oversized Bathtub" shall, upon resale of the property, be 
removed, permanently disconnected or converted to a recirculating, treated water 
type of tub, or a tub of seventy (70) gallons capacity or less and are subject to 
the retrofit on resale provisions of this chapter.  

(Res. 37-95 Schedule B: Ord. 5-88 Schedule B)  

136



 

Page 1 of 14 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ORDINANCE 03XX-2013 

 

Chapter 4.20 - WATER CONSERVATION AND RETROFIT PROGRAM 

Sections:  

4.20.010 - Application of rRetrofit requirements providers. 

4.20.020 - Retrofit recipients. 

4.20.030 - Program implementation. 

4.20.040 - Equivalency table. 

4.20.050 - Program standards. 

4.20.060 - Program administration. 

4.20.070 - Administrative fees. 

4.20.080 - Time limit and transferability. 

Appendix 4.20 - RETROFIT POINTS EQUIVALENCY TABLE 

 
 

4.20.010 -– Application of  rRetrofit requirements providers. 

All commercial and residential property owners upon issuance of an intent 
to serve letter, all grandfathered services where no previous structure has been 
connected, and or all applicants for remodel or reconstruction of an existing 
service whereby any water fixtures will be added shall be required to participate 
in this program prior to issuance of a connection permit or remodel approval, 
pursuant to Title 8 of this code. It is also the purpose and intent of this chapter, in 
conjunction with the provisions of chapter 4.16 of this Code, to facilitate the 
policies of the board of directors to issue intent to serve letters on an interim 
basis while the District continues to pursue a long-term supplemental water 
supply project, based upon implementation of the District’s approved Water Use 
Efficiency Plan through water demand offsets. 

 

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.020 - Retrofit recipients. 

All commercial and residential improved-property owners and public 
agencies within the Cambria Community Services District service area are 

137



 

Page 2 of 14 
 

eligible, on a volunteer basis, to have their structures retrofitted, or otherwise 
participate in the programs offered by the district with the following exceptions:  

Not eligible:  

1. 

1. Structures already required to retrofit under Chapter 4.16 
(resales and remodels);  

2. 

2. Existing fixtures in sStructures that provide no additional 
water savings based upon their being in compliance with the 
standards and requirements contained in Chapter 4.16 and the 
most current adopted Acceptable Water Savings Plumbing and 
Fixtures Listpreviously retrofitted, provided however, that fixtures 
not already retrofitted to the standards required under this chapter 
shall be eligible;  

3. 

3. Replacement structures (tear down/rebuild, whether on 
same site or transferred). 

In addition, riparian water users and/or property owners in the Santa Rosa 
Creek and San Simeon Creek watersheds, upon approval of the general 
manager, are eligible for participation in district sponsored programs under this 
chapter.  

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.030 - Program implementation. 

No new residential or commercial water and sewer connections or 
remodel approvals will be allowed except under this water conservation and 
retrofit program. The water conservation and retrofit program, hereinafter referred 
to as "program" shall be initiated as follows:  

A. 

A. New Construction From Waiting Lists. 
1. 

1. As provided in Section 8.04.080 (C) and as further 
provided in the administrative policy adopted in accordance 
with that Section , tThe board of directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District may authorize issuance of the 
general manager to issue such number of intent to serve 

138



 

Page 3 of 14 
 

(ITS) letters,  under this program as deemed appropriate and 
in accordance with Title 8 of this code.  

 
 2.  Points and Points Bank.   
 a. The number of points required to offset water 
use for the project shall be calculated based upon 
administrative procedures approved by the board and a 
retrofit points equivalency table, which shall be adopted by 
the board by resolution. Points for commercial projects shall 
be determined based upon either values contained in the 
retrofit points equivalency table or based  upon factors 
deemed appropriate by CCSD staff for the particular type of 
commercial use, including but not limited to the number of 
employees and whether facilities such as restrooms are to 
be made available for use by the public. Points shall 
represent water units (i.e. 1 point shall equal .72 annual 
water unit or 1.47 gallons per day). The retrofit points 
equivalency table shall include point values for fixtures, and 
the methodology for calculating the number of points 
required for a project in order to offset water use.  Applicants 
shall be notified of the number of points required for his or 
her project.   
 b. A points bank shall be maintained by the 
district which shall represent retrofit points that accrue from 
the installation of high-efficiency water use fixtures that result 
from retrofits when there is a change of ownership or use 
(Section 4.16.050), expansion of use (Section 4.16.060, 
resale (4.16.070), district rebate programs, and other district 
programs used to achieve verifiable reductions in existing 
water use in the district’s service area.   .   
 c.  Applicants shall have the obligation to provide 
retrofits in the district’s service area that offset the water 
demand of the project, as represented by the required 
number of points as determined by district staff. The district 
may permit all or a portion of the required points to be 
satisfied by payment of in-lieu fees for points from the points 
bank.  In-lieu fees shall be established by the board by 
resolution, and shall be based upon a determination of the 
cost to implement programs and projects that will reduce 
existing water use within the district’s service area in an 
amount equal to or greater than the anticipated water use of 
projects being issued intent to serve letters.               

 
2. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Border: :
(No border)

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Border: :
(No border)

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

139



 

Page 4 of 14 
 

3. The district will issue a notification to eligible waiting 
list position holders along with an invoice for administrative 
fees, as required by the district’s adopted fee schedule. 
Within thirty (30) fifteen (15) days of issuance of notification 
or such other time established by the General Manager, the 
applicant must make full payment of administrative fees and, 
if permitted by the district to select the option to perform 
retrofits or pay an in-lieu fee, tender to the district the 
amount of in-lieu fees that are required. of fifty dollars 
($50.00) per point required. The appropriate number of 
points shall be calculated in accordance with the schedule 
provided in Appendix 4.20. Payment of in-lieu fees shall 
relieve applicant of any further requirements under this 
program, except for those provided in subsections (A)(3) and 
(A)(4) of this section. On receipt of the administrative fee and 
in-lieu fees, if applicable,applicant's selection of retrofit 
option, and when in compliance with all other applicable laws 
and regulations, the district shall issue an intent to serve 
letter.  

3. 

4. In the event in-lieu fees are not requested by the 
applicant, or are not permitted or only satisfy a portion of the 
points required for the project, wWithin sixty (60) days of the 
issuance of the intent to serve letter, applicant must pay the 
in-lieu fee, if chosen, or submit properties proposed for 
plumbing and/or agriculture retrofit. All retrofit work then 
must be completed within ninety (90) days of the issuance 
date of the intent to serve ITS letter. Also within that same 
ninety (90) days (or no later than the last business day of the 
calendar year, whichever comes first), all residential 
applicants must show proof to the district, that they have 
applied for a building permit allocation under the San Luis 
Obispo County growth management ordinance. The 
allocation requires that a complete application be submitted 
to the county building and planning department for a building 
permit (and a minor use permit, where required) within the 
deadline set by the allocation.  

4. 

5. Failure to complete items in subsections (A)(32) and 
(A)(43) within the prescribed time periods will result in the 
general manager revoking the intent to serve letter and notify 

140



 

Page 5 of 14 
 

the county that the applicant is not eligible for water and 
sewer service. All persons returned to the water and sewer 
waiting list shall be notified in writing. Such persons returned 
to the water and sewer waiting list shall be placed back on 
the list in the same relative order that their original position 
bears to all others on to the list. Any administrative fee paid 
shall be forfeited. Retrofit fees are non-refundable. Any 
retrofits paid or completed shall be held in credit for future 
use for that project. Any retrofit in-lieu fees paid by the 
applicant shall be refunded and related retrofit points shall 
be returned to the points bank. 

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

B. 

B. Grandfathered Services. Grandfathered services are subject 
to retrofit requirements as per the adopted retrofit points 
equivalency table.  Appendix 4.20. If the grandfather status was the 
result of a previously existent residence, the retrofit requirement 
shall be as for a "remodel." If there was no previous existent 
residence, the retrofit requirement shall be due and payable upon 
issuance of a county-approved building permit.  

C. 

C. Remodels and Active Service Transfers. 
1. 

1. Remodel or reconstruction of any existing service is 
subject to review by district staff when the project either 
adds: twenty-five (205) percent or more to existing habitable 
floor space, or adds any water-using fixtures.  

2. 

2. Application for approval of a remodel or 
reconstruction shall be made on a form provided by the 
district and include floor plans for the complete existing 
structure as well as the proposed remodel. Detailed 
information shall be provided on the existing fixtures and the 
fixtures proposed for installation, including existing fixture 
flow rates and toilet gallons per flush volume.  Timed 
discharge into a known volume container (i.e. bucket tests) 
may be used in cases where faucet 
maufacrurer’smanufacturer’s information is not readily 
shown.  Test shall be witnessed by a district representative 
or otherwise performed by a licensed plumber.  The remodel 

Formatted: Strikethrough

141



 

Page 6 of 14 
 

plans must be the same ones that will be submitted to San 
Luis Obispo County for construction permit. Hard copy plans 
shall include an 11-inch by 17 inch drawing set, as well as 
associated electronic images provided on a compact disc in 
Adobe Acrobate file format (i.e. “pdf” files).  Applications 
submitted on behalf of a property owner shall be 
accompanied by an agent authorization form provided by the 
district.  An application fee shall be charged for plan review, 
except that in the event fixtures are being added, the plan 
review fee shall be included within the remodel impact fee.  

3. 

3. Impact fees for added water fixtures shall conform to 
Exhibit 2 of the ordinance codified in this chapter, and/or 
current district fee schedule, as may be amended.  

4. 

4. Upon receipt of complete application and fees, district 
shall provide a clearance letter stating project description, 
approval conditions, and fees paid. The clearance letter shall 
be provided by applicant to San Luis Obispo County for 
processing of construction permit.  

D. 

D. The general manager is authorized to establish a separate 
account for remodel impact and retrofit in-lieu fees collected in 
accordance with the provisions of this program. The general 
manager may authorize the expenditure of funds from this account 
to provide for retrofits and programs that will add points to the 
points bank, and for such other purposes authorized by the board 
of directors. only for qualified projects and programs identified in 
Section 4.20.050 and subject to such limitations contained therein.  

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.040 - Equivalency table. 

A. 

A. An equivalency table is adopted and codified in Appendix 4.20. The 
retrofit points equivalency table approved by the board shall indicate 
indicates the point values of existing fixtures which may be retrofitted and 
the corresponding point requirements for each newly constructed or 
remodeled residential or commercial structure.  Points for commercial 
projects shall be determined based upon either values contained in the 
retrofit points equivalency table or based  upon factors deemed 
appropriate by CCSD staff for the particular type of commercial use, 

142



 

Page 7 of 14 
 

including but not limited to the number of employees and whether facilities 
such as restrooms are to be made available for use by the public. A 
package of proposed retrofits must add up to no less than the minimum 
requirements established in  the retrofit points equivalency table.Appendix 
4.20.  

B. 

B. Owners of building parcels of eight thousand (8,000) square feet or 
more are required to install, on their own parcel, non-potable irrigation 
water cisterns with a minimum capacity of three thousand (3,000) gallons 
with collection-distributions systems, prior to receiving final occupancy 
approval.  Properties with non-potable piping shall install and maintain a 
reduced pressure backflow device on the potable water service.  For non-
residential properties with more thant 1,000 square feet of irrigated land 
area, a separate water meter service shall be installed to measure 
irrigation water.  Re-inspection will be required at time of resale and 
remodeling to encourage continued use and maintenance. This 
requirement shall also apply to transfer of any service (active or otherwise) 
from a smaller parcel to one that is eight thousand (8,000) sq. ft. or larger.  

C. 

C. The general manager is authorized to make determinations for 
fixtures or projects not specifically designated in the equivalency table, 
including but not limited to irrigation water conservation projects, water-
line leak detection and correction projects, and water marketing program 
projects. Such determinations shall be based on the estimated amount of 
water to be saved or created, the cost of project implementation, the type, 
size, and estimated water use of the structure to be built and attainment of 
the savings goal established under this chapter.  

D. 

D. The retrofit  equivalencypoints equivalency table may be 
periodically adjusted to reflect changes in water use and/or water savings 
or for other reasons determined by resolution of the board of directors.  

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.050 - Program standards. 

A. 

A. The following procedures, standards and/or warranties will be 
utilized in processing plumbing retrofit installation projects: 
1. 

1. Fixtures shall comply with the performance standards 
contained in approved list of Acceptable Water Savings Plumbing 

143



 

Page 8 of 14 
 

and Fixtures, as provided for in Chapter 4.16. (see Appendix 4.20 
for point values). 

a. 

Toilets - Ultra-low flow 1.6 gallons per flush maximum; 

b. 

Showerheads with shutoff valve - two gallons per minute maximum; 

c. 

Faucet aerators - two gallons per minute maximum; 

d. 

Outside hose bib with vacuum breaker - four gallons per minute 
maximum at fifty (50) pounds per square inch; 

e. 

Pressure regulators - fifty (50) pounds per square inch with a rated 
capacity of at least three hundred (300) pounds per square inch;  

f. 

Hot water recirculating pump (only where the wait for hot water at 
the tap exceeds approximately twenty (20) seconds); 

g. 

Energy-Star rated domestic washing machines. (Annual re-
inspection of washer installations shall insure continued use within 
this community)  

2. 

2. The district shall maintain a list of approved replacement 
fixtures that meet the standards required under this subsection. The 
district reserves the right to only approve specified fixtures for 
installation. Other brands may be approved by the general manager 
provided that they meet applicable performance standards 
equivalent to the brand specified.  

3. 

3. At the time of retrofit, the plumbing system will be checked 
for leaks and if any leaks are found they shall be repaired at the 
homeowner's expense. In addition, a water pressure test shall be 
conducted. Water pressure regulators shall be adjusted or installed 
in order that the water pressure does not exceed fifty (50) psig. The 
regulator shall be installed as close to the water meter as practical.  

4. 

4. Plumbing retrofits shall be conducted so that the entire 
residential or commercial structure shall be brought up to the 

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Space Before:  2.4 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

144



 

Page 9 of 14 
 

standards required under this Chaptersection, wherever practical; 
however, partial retrofits shall be allowed for reduced point values. 
All work shall conform to applicable law and shall be warranted for 
a period of one year.  

5. 

5. The contractor shall be responsible for disposal of the old 
toilet and replacement of the toilet seat if requested by the home 
owner. All additional repairs to make the toilet fit in the bathroom, 
as well as repairs for damage, shall be at the plumber's expense. 
All refuse and discarded materials created by the retrofit shall be 
removed from the project volunteer's premises on the same day the 
work is performed. Failure to remove materials as required will 
result in the assessment of a mandatory re-inspection fee.  

B. 
B. Points shall be assigned to agriculture water conservation projects on a 
comparable basis to the approved retrofit equivalency table and conversion chart 
provided in Appendix 4.20. The general manager shall make determinations as to the 
estimated amount of water to be saved based on the proposed project to be conducted. 
In cases where a special installation is required or where unforeseen costs are incurred, 
the general manager may issue additional points. The general manager shall determine 
the eligibility of properties under this program as well as the type of installations eligible 
for participation under this program. C. 

BC. The following general provisions shall be applicable to the 
provisions of this section: 
1. 

1. This program shall be conducted by licensed, bonded, and 
insured contractors. The general manager may require that the 
contractor put a bond or cash deposit on file with the district and/or 
attend a district sponsored orientation program as a condition of 
providing services under this program. On request, the contractor 
shall provide the district with detailed costs and invoices associated 
with any installation under this program.  

2. 

2. The general manager may approve waivers and/or 
extensions where the conservation fixture(s) is not sufficient for the 
intended use, where there are significant problems associated with 
the installation, where the special demands of the household or 
business require modification, where additional time is needed to 
complete a project and/or where appropriate conservation fixtures 
are not readily available for the particular installation. Such waivers 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

145



 

Page 10 of 14 
 

or extensions shall be in writing and may require additional water 
reduction methods to be installed to offset the nonconforming 
fixtures.  

3. 

3. The general manager may approve the use of in-lieu fees 
not to exceed an amount established by the board by 
resolution,one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for any one retrofit 
project for the installation of unique or special fixtures and/or 
equipment associated with plumbing or agricultural retrofitting. The 
use of such funds shall include, but not be limited to: wall hung, one 
piece or specialty toilets; extensive replacement materials required 
of an installation; unique equipment needed for agricultural retrofits 
or for other types of related installation issues.  

4. 

 The board of directors establishes the following categories for the 
use of funds collected from in-lieu fees: plumbing retrofits for 
volunteers, water conservation and retrofit consultant study, leak 
detection, meter audits, and any other expenditure approved by 
resolution of the board of directors.  

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.060 - Program administration. 

A. 

A. The general manager is authorized to establish such procedures 
and such forms as are necessary to implement this program. 

B. 

B. The general manager shall monitor and periodically report to the 
board of directors the status of the program, and its ability to meet the 
intended purposes.  

C. 

C. The general manager shall designate appropriate staff to conduct 
pre-inspection and final inspections for verification of compliance with this 
chapter and otherwise delegate responsibility for program administration.  

D. 

D. The general manager shall implement retrofit project priorities, 
taking into account the amount of funds available, and the board's 
priorities for use of funds.  

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.070 - Administrative fees. 

146



 

Page 11 of 14 
 

A. 

A. A nonrefundable administrative fee shall be payable to the district 
by applicants eligible for intent to serve letters. The fee shall cover the 
cost of administering this program as well as the necessary pre- and final 
inspections.  

B. 

B. In the event that an applicant withdraws prior to completing this 
program, or fails to meet appropriate deadlines, the administrative fee 
shall be forfeited.  

C. 

C. The minimum fees established under this section shall be for 
normal processing of applications under this program. In the event that 
inspections on any individual project are required beyond the pre- and 
final inspection, additional inspection charges may be charged. The district 
reserves the right to charge for time and materials on any project that 
exceeds the costs identified in this section.  

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

4.20.080 - Time limit and transferability. 

A. 

Plumbing retrofit approvals may be "assigned" to a new owner upon the 
sale of the property for which the retrofits were conducted or "transferred" 
to a new property pursuant to the district's assignment and transfer 
programs. No other assignment or transfer of retrofit credits shall be 
permitted.  

B. 

This program shall be in effect until rescinded or modified by the board of 
directors. 

(Ord. 9-2003 Attach. 1 (part))  

Appendix 4.20 - RETROFIT POINTS EQUIVALENCY TABLE 

Points: 1 point is equal to .72 annual water unit or 1.47 gallons per day  

Fixture Values:  

Each existing home or fixture retrofitted is worth the following points:  

Each 3.5 gpm toilet replaced with 1.6 gpm 5.4 points 

Each whole house upgrade (faucets, shower heads & pressure regulator) 2.7 points 

Each Hot Water recirculation pump installed* 6.8 points 

Each Energy-Star domestic washing machine installed 6.65 points 

147



 

Page 12 of 14 
 

Editor's note— *  Hot water recirculation pump shall only be installed where 
the wait for hot water at the tap exceeds about twenty (20) seconds.  

Editor's note— NOTE: Builders performing actual retrofits are responsible for 
locating their own retrofit points, arranging details and obtaining commitments 
from property owners. Payment of the "in lieu" fee relieves builder of further 
involvement in retrofitting other properties, unless otherwise required as a 
condition of county building permit.  

Points Required to Build a New Project:  

Each 3,000 gallon (minimum) non-potable cistern 22.0 points 

No. of "Basic Full Baths" in proposed project (See per fixture fees for additional partial 
baths) 
"Basic Full Bath" = 1 toilet, 1/tub/shower combination, and 1 sink.  

Each point = $50 "In 
Lieu Fee" (Fees in 
this chart are 
illustrative only and 
subject to change. 
Fees should be 
confirmed with 
district fee schedule 
in effect at time of 
charges)  

1 Bath 2 Baths 3 Baths 4 Baths 5 or More 

 Points/In 
Lieu Fee 

Points/In 
Lieu Fee 

Points/In 
Lieu Fee 

Points/In 
Lieu Fee 

Points/In 
Lieu Fee 

Parcel Size  
Under 4,000 Sq. Ft.  

80/$4,000 100/$5,000 125/$6,250 150/$7,500 175/$8,750 

4,000 — 8,000 Sq. 
Ft. 

90/$4,500 125/$6,250 150/$7,500 175/$8,750 200/$10,000 

All projects over 
8,000 sq. ft. require 
cistern installation in 
addition to retrofit 
points shown here. 
8,001 - 16,000 Sq. 
Ft. 

100/$4,500 150/$7,500 175/$8,750 200/$10,000 250/$12,500 

16,001- 32,000 Sq. 
Ft. 

110/$5,500 175/$8,500 200/$10,000 250/$12,500 300/$15,000 

Over 32,000 Sq. Ft. 120/$6,000 200/$10,000 225/$11,250 300/$15,000 325/$16,250 

Formatted Table

148



 

Page 13 of 14 
 

Editor's note— New Construction Example:  

Editor's note— To build a 3-bathroom house on a 9,000 sq. ft. lot requires 175 points. 
175 points equate to 126 water units per year, or 21 units per billing period (average). 
Points may be satisfied in any combination totaling at least 175, such as:  

Remodel Regulations  

Remodels may not change the type of service existing  

(i.e. a single-family residence may not be converted to a multi-family dwelling)  

How to determine if your remodel requires any processing by CCSD:  

Editor's note— * Plan review includes submittal to CCSD of a completed 
application form, a copy of the remodel floor plans being submitted to county 
planning (reduced size if possible), and also, existing (pre-remodel) floor plan 
for comparison of water fixtures.  

Each common-wall condominium, or attached multi-family 
unit 

100 points / $5,000 (per 
unit) 

Commercial Projects (per EDU) 125 points / $6,250 (per 
EDU) 

Per-fixture fees for partial and/or oversized baths = toilet or sink $400 (8 points), tub or 
shower $800 (16 points) 

Replace 21 toilets @ 5.4 points 113.40 points 

Install 3 Energy-Star Washers @ 6.65 points 19.95 points 

3 Whole-house upgrades @2.7 points 8.10 points 

Install 5 hot-water recirc. pumps @ 6.8 points 34.00 points 

TOTAL 175.45 points 

QUESTION If YES, then … 

Will your remodel add less than 25% to your existing 
habitable floor space, and no water using fixtures? 

No further process required from 
CCSD 

Will your remodel add more than 25% to your existing 
habitable floor space? 

Plan Review required.* 

Will your remodel add any water-using fixtures? Plan Review required* and 
impact fees due. See Fee 
Schedule below 

Will your remodel require additional EDU allocation 
(i.e. commercial use increase, or additional residential 
dwelling being created)  

NOT ALLOWED under water 
moratorium 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

149



 

Page 14 of 14 
 

District will review your plans, and upon approval of project will provide you with 
a "Verification of Water Service" letter for county. Applicable fees and conditions 
of approval will be indicated on the letter.  

Exhibit 2  

(Ord. 9-2003 Exh. 1)  
 

Impact Fee Schedule: 

Plan Review Only—No fixtures being added (with Letter for 
County) 

$25.00 

Additional water fixtures: Fee Includes letter for 
county 

 Each Additional Toilet $400.00 ( 8 points) 

 Each Additional Kitchen or Bath Sink $400.00 ( 8 points) 

 Each Additional Clothes Washer $400.00 ( 8 points) 

 Each Additional Tub or separate Shower $800.00 (16 points) 

Each Additional Bar or Laundry Sink $200.00 ( 4 points) 

150



 
RESOLUTION NO. 36-2013 

August 22, 2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING A RETROFIT IN-LIEU FEE FOR POINTS IN THE 
POINTS BANK RELATED TO THE CCSD WATER 

CONSERVATON AND RETROFIT PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District 
has adopted Resolution 09-2013 approving the issuance of intent to serve letters 
on an interim basis while the District continues to pursue a long-term 
supplemental water supply, and subsequently adopted Ordinance 03-2013 
amending the Water Conservation and Retrofit Program contained in Chapter 
4.20 of the CCSD Municipal Code as part of its implementation of Resolution 09-
2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, CCSD Municipal Code Section 4.20.030(A)(2), as amended, 
provides that the number of points required to offset water use for a project is to 
be calculated, and applicants are obligated to provide retrofits in the District’s 
service area that offset the water demand of the project as represented by the 
required number of points, and the District may also permit the required points to 
be satisfied by payment of retrofit in-lieu fees for points in the CCSD’s Points 
Bank; and 
 
WHEREAS, since its adoption in 2003, Section 4.20.030(A)(2) has provided for a 
retrofit in-lieu fee of fifty dollars ($50) per point, and Section 4.20.030(A)(2) has 
been revised to provide that the retrofit in-lieu fees are to be established by the 
Board of Directors by resolution based upon a determination of the cost to 
implement programs and projects that will reduce existing water use within the 
CCSD’s service area, and the Board now desires to re-establish the amount of 
the retrofit in-lieu fees at fifty dollars ($50) per point based upon the CCSD’s 
budget for its conservation program, subject to further review and analysis for 
additional increases necessary to fund the reduction in existing water use. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 
Cambria Community Services District as follows: 
 

1.  Applicants who are permitted to satisfy their points requirements by 
payment of retrofit in-lieu fees for points in the Points Bank, as 
provided in CCSD Municipal Code Section 4.20.030, shall pay fifty 
dollars ($50) per point. 
 

2.  Applicants who pay for points in the Points Bank shall be subject to 
all other requirements for Intent to Serve Letters, as established by 
the CCSD Municipal Code and related policies, rules and 
regulation. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 22nd day of August, 2013. 
 
 151



      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel 
      District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate 
District Clerk 

152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162


	Agenda
	GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
	SR 6 A General Manager's Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Rpt-Fin Mgr Rpt
	SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt Attach-Cash & Investments
	SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt-Debt Schedule
	SR 6 A Fire Chief Report
	SR 6 A Fire Stats August 2013
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Facilities and Resources Report
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Admin Office Rpt August 2013
	SR 6 A Utilities Manager Report
	SR 6 A Dist Eng Rpt Addendum to GM Rpt
	SR 6 A attachment re Statistical analysis of SS levels by month
	SR 6 A attachment line plots of SS wells by year 1988_2012
	SR 6 A attachment line plot San Simeon wells min avg max
	SR 6 A attachment re 8_13_2013 SR well levels chart
	SR 6 A 2013 0801 PRODUCTION
	SR 6 A attachment well levels summary as of 8_15_2013

	Consideration to Approve Expenditures for July 2013
	SR 7 A Expenditure Report for the Month of July, 2013
	SR 7 A Expenditure Report Dept. Codes

	Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular Meeting, July 25, 2013
	SR 7 B 2013 0725 DRAFT MINUTES

	Consideration to Approve Pacific Western Bank Request for Intent to Serve Extension for APN 024-191-062
	SR 7 C Discussion and Consideration Intent to Serve Extension Pacific Western Bank
	SR 7 C Application for Extension and Correspondence from Pacific Western Bank
	SR 7 C Attachment of Parcel Map
	SR 7 C Attachment 2008 Agreement

	Public Hearing to Adopt Resolution 34-2013 Approving Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2013/2014
	SR 8 A Public Hearing to Approve Approp Limit FFY 2013-2014
	SR 8 A-Appropriation Limit FFY 2013-2014
	SR 8 B Reso 34-2014 Adopt FY 2013-2014 Approp Limit

	Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Resolution 35-2013 Amending the CCSD Fee Schedule to Provide for Revised Fees to Connect to the Water and Sewer Systems
	SR 8 B Approve Reso 35-2013 re water and sewer capacity fees
	SR 8 B CCSD Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reso
	SR 8 B Final Cambria CSD Wtr Swr Capacity Fee Study 8-8-13

	Consideration of Adoption of Ordinance 03-2013 Amending the CCSD Municipal Code to Implement the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters and the Revised Water Conservation and Retrofit Program and Directing the District Clerk to File a Notice of Exemption and Adoption of Resolution 36-2013 Establishing Retrofit In-Lieu Fees
	SR 9 A 8-22 staff report to adopt ordinance and in-lieu fee resolution re interim issuance of intent to serve letters
	SR 9 A 8-22-13 CCSD Ordinance to amend CCSD Code to Implement the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters w counsel modifications appvd by BOD
	SR 9 A 8-22-13 -Exhibit A CCSD Code 4 16 Water Conservations Devices redline
	SR 9 A 8-22-13  Exhibit B to Chapter 4 20 CCSD Code w counsel modifications appvd by BOD Exhibit B Ord 03 2013 redline
	SR 9 A Resolution to establish Points Bank In-lieu fee
	SR 9 A Ordinance 09 2003


